
Page 1 of 3 

 

 City Council Meeting and Workshop 

August 5, 2013 

Agenda 
                                    
 
 
                                                                             
 

5:30 P.M.  Workshop  

A. School Budget – Clint Deschene (30 minutes)  

B. Public Services Committee(s) – Mayor LaBonté (30 minutes) 

C. Bond Order – Jill Eastman (5-10 minutes) 

D. Proposed ordinance regarding the regulation of synthetic drugs – Phil Crowell (15 minutes) 

E. Legends Sports Bar and Grill application for Liquor License and Special Amusement Permit – Clint 

Deschene (5 minutes) 

 

7:00 P.M.  City Council Meeting 

 

Pledge of Allegiance   

I. Consent Items – All items listed with an asterisk (*) are considered as routine and will be approved in one motion.   

There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Councilor or citizen so requests.  If requested, the item 

will be removed from the consent agenda and considered in the order it appears on the agenda.   

 

1. Order 59-08052013* 
Casting votes for the Maine Municipal Association’s Vice President and Executive 

Committee Members. 

 

II.    Minutes   

 July 1, 2013 Regular Council Meeting 

 July 15, 2013 Regular Council Meeting  
 

III.   Reports  

Mayor’s Report  

Committee Reports 

 Transportation 

o Androscoggin Transportation Resource Center – Mayor LaBonte 

o Lewiston Auburn Transit – Councilor Gerry 

o Airport, Railroad – Councilor Hayes 

o Bike-Ped Committee – Councilor Shea 

 Housing 

o Community Development Block Grant, Neighborhood Stabilization Program, 

Auburn Housing Authority – Councilor Gerry 

 Economic Development 

o L-A Economic Growth Council, Auburn Business Development Corporation  

 Education 

o Auburn School Committee – Councilor Young 

o Auburn Public Library – Councilor LaFontaine 

o Great Falls TV – Councilor Young and Councilor Shea 

 Environmental Services 

o Auburn Water District, Auburn Sewerage District – Councilor Crowley 

 



Au b u r n  C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  &  W o r k s h o p  
 August 5, 2013 

 

Page 2 of 3 

 

o Mid-Maine Waste Action Corp. – Councilor Walker 

 Recreation 

o Recreation Advisory Board – Councilor Walker 

 Public Safety 

o LA 911 – Councilor Walker 

 

             City Councilors’ Reports 

 
City Manager’s Report 

                

IV.    Communications, Presentations and Recognitions  

 Proclamation - Ken Blais, owner of Rolly’s Diner and the City of Auburn’s 2013 Spirit of 

America Tribute recipient 

  

V.     Open Session – Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related to 

                                              City business which is not on this agenda.  Time limit for open sessions, by ordinance, is 45 minutes.    

 

VI.    Unfinished Business 
 

1. Ordinance 07-06032013  
Approving the proposed ordinance amendment on alcoholic beverages at Mass Gatherings 

(second and final reading).   
 

VII.     New Business 

 

2. Order 60-08052013  
Adopting the School Budget for Fiscal Year 2014. 

 

3. Order 61-08052013  
Setting the date (August 20, 2013) and location (Auburn Hall) and the time the polls will 

open (7:00 A.M.) for the School Budget Validation Referendum Election. 

 

4. Order 62-08052013  

Establishing the property tax payment due dates and to establish the property tax 

delinquency and overpayment interest rates for Fiscal Year 2012-2013. 

 

5. Order 63-08052013  
Establishing a Public Services Department including Public Works, Parks and Recreation, 

and Engineering within current approved budgets. 

 

6. Order 64-08052013  
Approving changes to the Community Development Program amendment. 

Staff recommends postponing this item until the August 19, 2013 Council Meeting. 

 

VIII. Executive Session 

 Discussion on a Poverty Abatement, pursuant to 36 M.R.S.A. Sec. 841 (2) with possible 

action to follow. 



Au b u r n  C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  &  W o r k s h o p  
 August 5, 2013 

 

Page 3 of 3 

 

IX.  Open Session - Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related to 

                                               City business which is not on this agenda. 

 

X. Adjournment 

 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered 

in executive session.  Executive sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are 

required to be kept confidential until they become a matter of public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor 

must make a motion in public.  The motion must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council must vote to go into 

executive session.  An executive session is not required to be scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known 

at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The only topics which may be discussed in executive session 

are those that fall within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6).  Those applicable to municipal 

government are: 

A. Discussion of personnel issues 

B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension of expulsion 

C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to 

real property or interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature 

disclosures of the information would prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency   

D. Labor contracts 

E. Contemplated litigation 

F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the 

general public to those records is prohibited by statute; 

G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or 

employment purposes; consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that 

body or agency regarding the content of an examination; and review of examinations with the person examined; and 

H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 

30-A, section 4452, subsection 1, paragraph in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when 

the consultation relates to that pending enforcement matter.  

 



City Council 

Workshop Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Adopting the School Budget for FY2014 

 

Information: The School Budget Validation Election that did not pass on June 11, 2013 or July 23, 2013 put us 

in a position that requires the City to review the proposed 3
rd

 School Budget. Once Council has reviewed the 

budget they will have to consider forwarding it to the Auburn Voters for final approval. 

 

The School Committee met on Wednesday July 31
st
 and is forwarding a new budget to the City Council.  The 

Council needs to review this budget that will result in a mill rate of 20.43.   

 

It is my recommendation that the Council adopt the proposed school budget, set an election for August 20
th

, set 

a tax due date for September 25
th

, 2013, and direct staff to begin the process of sending out tax bills so that bills 

could be mailed on August 26
th

, 2013.   

 

Following the above process results in a minimal change to the due date of taxes, begins the process to collect 

tax bills, which starts the revenue stream solidifying the City’s cash flow.  One concern to be aware of is that 

should the School Budget not be validated the tax bills would be based upon the amount taxes needed to fund 

education.  However, any excess revenue would not be available to spend and would be held for future 

educational needs. 

 

The alternative to not proceeding with commitment and tax billing is that the City will run the risk of needing a 

Tax Anticipation Note.  Funds spend on the note would be interest bearing and would be an expense to the 

School or City beyond current budgets.  I recommend against delaying bills due to the interest cost of a Tax 

Anticipation Note. 

 

Financial: With approval the overall City budget, including municipal and county budgets, will have a 20.43 

mil rate based on a $2,005,721,383 overall valuation 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Potential approval by City Council to proceed. 

 

Previous Meetings and History: The School Budget Validation Referendum failed on June 11, 2013 and again 

on July 23, 2013. 

 

Attachments: Budget spreadsheet, Timeline, Email from Dan Stockford, Notice of Amounts, Order 

Council Workshop Date:  August 5, 2013 Item  A 

Author:   Clint Deschene, City Manager 







TIMELINE FOR SCHOOL BUDGET APPROVAL, VALIDATION VOTE AND TAX COMMITMENT 

 

1. School Committee adopts budget, no later than August 5, 2013 

2. City Council approves School budget, August 5, 2013 

3. City Council sets interest rate and tax due date, August 5, 2013 

4. Absentee process beings, August 6, 2013 

5. Staff begins process to generate tax bills. 

6. School Budget Validation Election, August 20, 2013 

7. Tax Commitment, August 21, 2013 

8. Tax files from Patriot System transferred to MUNIS, August 26, 2013 

9. Tax bills mailed, no later than August 29, 2013 

10. Tax bills due, 1st half September 25, 2013 and 2nd half due March 15, 2014 



From: Dan Stockford [mailto:DStockford@brannlaw.com]  

Sent: Friday, July 26, 2013 2:40 PM 
To: Clint Deschene 

Cc: Jill Eastman; Jonathan LaBonte; Howard Kroll 
Subject: RE: School Budget 

 

Clint, 

 

This is in response to your inquiry regarding commitment of property taxes in light of the fact 

that the school budget has not yet been validated by the voters. 

 

I understand that Auburn school budgets that have been approved by the City Council have twice 

been rejected by voters at budget validation referenda, on June 11 and July 23.  Maine law 

provides that “[n]otwithstanding any other law, municipal school budgets developed after 

January 1, 2008 must follow the same school budget requirements as regional school units 

pursuant to Chapter 103-A…”  In turn, Chapter 103-A of Title 20-A provides:  “If the budget 

of a regional school unit is not approved and validated before July 1
st
 and the officers of any 

affected municipality determine that the property taxes must be committed in a timely manner to 

the collector pursuant to Title 36, Section 709, the municipal assessor or assessors may commit 

the property taxes on the basis of the latest budget approved at a regional school unit budget 

meeting and submitted to the voters for validation at a referendum in accordance with Section 

1486.” 

 

Because July 1
st
 has passed and a school budget has not yet been approved and validated, 

property taxes may be committed on the basis of the latest budget approved at a Council meeting 

and submitted to the voters for validation at a referendum. Thus, if the City decided that property 

taxes were to be committed today, the taxes must be committed on the basis of the budget that 

was approved by the Council and submitted to voters on July 23
rd

.  If another District budget 

meeting and validation referendum were to take place before property taxes committed, however, 

then the taxes must be committed on the basis of the last budget approved by the Council and 

submitted to the voters in a validation referendum.   

 

As you note, if voters were to later validate a lower school budget than the budget that formed 

the basis for the tax commitment, then the City would have excess revenue to hold as carry 

forward for future education costs. In order to avoid this, there would be nothing to prevent the 

Council from issuing a tax anticipation note, rather than committing taxes before the budget is 

finally resolved.  Because Maine law does not specifically address who would be responsible for 

the costs of a TAN in this situation, the issue of which entity would be responsible for the costs 

of the TAN would need to be resolved by agreement between the City and the School 

Department.   

 

Dan 

 

Daniel C. Stockford | BRANN & ISAACSON 

—————————————————————————————— 

Tel: 207.786.3566 | Fax: 207.783.9325 

184 Main Street | Box 3070 | Lewiston, ME 04243–3070 

mailto:DStockford@brannlaw.com


Email: dstockford@brannlaw.com 

Website: www.brannlaw.com 

 
 
From: Clint Deschene [mailto:cdeschene@auburnmaine.gov]  
Sent: Thursday, July 25, 2013 3:27 PM 

To: Dan Stockford 

Cc: Jill Eastman; Jonathan LaBonte; Howard Kroll 
Subject: School Budget 

 
Dan, 
 
The current school budget has failed.  Katy Grodin has checked with the School attorney who feels that 
that since the budget failed again the City Council may change our appropriation of property taxes for 
schools.   
 
As such the Council should be able to consider setting the appropriation of taxes to schools.  The issue is 
that Auburn typically sends out bills late in August.  Finance feels that we can delay a month or two 
without a TAN then we would need one.  Another option is having the Council set the number they 
support and then send out bills without a validated school budget.  Then the process becomes messy.  If 
the budget fails and the residents lower the amount more, the City will have excess revenue to hold as 
carry forward for future education costs.  Mostly a political issue but a risky one.   
 
The other problem is if the Council decides to wait and school budget keeps failing the City must at 
some point issue a tax bill or take out a TAN.  I prefer not to use a TAN. 
 
Can you confirm that per Charter the City can set the amount they approve of property taxes and then 
issue bills without a validated school vote?   
 
Thanks, 
Clint 
 
Clinton Deschene 
Auburn City Manager 
(207)333-6601 ext. 1212 
 
Please be advised that email communications sent to or received from City employees are subject to the Freedom of Access Act and may 
become part of public record or shared with the media. 
 
 

mailto:dstockford@brannlaw.com
http://www.brannlaw.com/
mailto:cdeschene@auburnmaine.gov


NOTICE OF AMOUNTS ADOPTED AT AUBURN CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

FOR VOTERS AT SCHOOL BUDGET 

VALIDATION REFERENDUM 

 

 

TO: Clerk of City of Auburn, State of Maine 

 

Pursuant to 20-A M.R.S.A. §§ 1486(2) and 2307 this Notice is to be displayed at all polling 

places for the school budget validation referendum to be held on August 20, 2013, to assist the 

voters in voting on whether to ratify the school budget approved at the August 5, 2013 City 

Council Meeting. 

 

Cost Center Summary 

Budget Category 

Amount 

Recommended by 

School Committee 

Amount Approved at the 

City Council Meeting on 

August 5, 2013 

Regular Instruction $14,578,636 $14,578,636 

Special Education $ 7,429,052 $ 7,429,052 

Career and Technical Education $ -0- $ -0- 

Other Instruction $    665,267 $    665,267 

Student and Staff Support $ 4,486,566 $ 4,486,566 

System Administration $    847,935 $    847,935 

School Administration $ 1,266,449 $ 1,266,449 

Transportation and Buses $ 1,294,390 $ 1,294,390 

Facilities Maintenance $ 3,472,594 $ 3,472,594 

Debt Service and Other Commitments $ 2,671,986 $ 2,671,986 

All Other Expenditures $    0 $    0 

Summary of Total 

Authorized Expenditures 
$36,712,875 $36,712,875 

 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                             

 

                                                                                                                                                             

 

                                                                                                                                                             

A majority of the School Committee 

 

 

Completed and countersigned by:                                                                                     /      /2013 

     Superintendent of Schools 

 

A true copy of the Notice, attest:                                                                            ,  Clerk  

     City of Auburn 

 



Tizz Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  Joshua Shea, At Large 

David Young, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 2 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

      ORDER 60-08052013 

 

 
Ordered that the Auburn City Council hereby adopts and approves the following School Budget articles for 

Fiscal Year 2013/2014. 
 

1. That $14,578,636.00 be authorized to be expended for Regular Instruction; 

 

2.  That $7,429,052.00 be authorized to be expended for Special Education; 

 

3. That $-0- be authorized to be expended for Career and Technical Education; 

 

4.  That $665,267.00 be authorized to be expended for Other Instruction; 

 

5.  That $4,486,566.00 be authorized to be expended for Student and Staff Support; 

 

6. That $847,935.00 be authorized to be expended for System Administration; 

 

7. That $1,266,449.00 be authorized to be expended for School Administration; 

 

8. That $1,294,390.00 be authorized to be expended for Transportation and Buses; 

 

9. That $3,472,594.00 be authorized to be expended for Facilities Maintenance; 

 

10. That $2,671,986.00 be authorized to be expended for Debt Service and Other Commitments; 

 

11. That $-0- be authorized to be expended for All Other Expenditures; 

 

12. That $33,762,245.00 be appropriated for the total cost of funding public education from Pre-

kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act and that  

$13,625,217.00 be raised as the municipality’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education from 

Pre-kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act in accordance 

with the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 20-A, section 15688;  

 

Explanation:  The city’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education from Pre-kindergarten 

to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act is the amount of money 

determined by state law to be the minimum amount that a municipality must raise in order to receive the 

full amount of state dollars. 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

13. That $1,510,976.00 be raised and appropriated for the annual payments on debt service previously 

approved by the city’s legislative body for non-state-funded school construction projects or non-state-funded 

portions of school construction projects, in addition to the funds appropriated as the local share of the city’s 

contribution to the total cost of funding public education from Pre-kindergarten to grade 12; 

 

Explanation:  Non-state-funded debt service is the amount of money needed for the annual payments on 

the city’s long-term debt for major capital school construction projects that are not approved for state 

subsidy. The bonding of this long-term debt was previously approved by the voters or other legislative 

body. 

 

14. That $0.00 be raised and appropriated in additional local funds for school purposes under the Maine 

Revised Statutes, Title 20-A, §15690; 

 

Explanation:  The additional local funds are those locally raised funds over and above the 

municipality’s local contribution to the total cost of funding public education from Pre- kindergarten to 

grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act and local amounts raised for 

the annual payment on non-state-funded debt service that will help achieve the school department 

budget for education programs. 

 

 

15. That the school committee be authorized to expend $36,712,875.00 for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 

2013 and ending June 30, 2014 from the city’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education from 

Pre-kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act, non-state-funded 

school construction projects, additional local funds for school purposes under the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 

20-A, section 15690, unexpended balances, tuition receipts, fund balances, state subsidy and other receipts for 

the support of schools; 

 

16. That the City of Auburn appropriate $373,357.00 for adult education and raise $183,311.00 as the local 

share, with authorization to expend any additional incidental or miscellaneous receipts in the interest and for the 

well-being of the adult education program; 

 

17. That the City of Auburn raise and appropriate $41,796.00 for the services of Community Services-

Crossing Guards. 

 

18. That in addition to amounts approved in the preceding articles, the school committee be authorized to 

expend such other sums as may be received from federal or state grants or programs or other sources during the 

fiscal year for school purposes, provided that such grants, programs or other sources do not require the 

expenditure of other funds not previously appropriated; 

 

 

 

 

 

 

         



City Council 

Workshop Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Public Services Committee(s) 

 

Information: With the formation of a Public Services approach with Public Works, Parks & Recreation, and 

Engineering, the Council identified the need regarding all of our external and internal committees working for 

the benefit of the City. The Mayor has provided information that management fully supports to compliment the 

internal operational change with our external committee communications. The two together should create better 

services, a more sound policy process and an overall, more efficient City service delivery. The potential pitfalls 

appear only to be staff time to implement the changes. From my perspective as Manager, the time measured 

against the overall benefit is minimal cost. Moreover, this could actually be a molded that could be 

implemented in more areas for greater long term to improve city services.   

 

Financial: Overall efficiencies and potential savings. 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Discussion 

 

Previous Meetings and History: N/A 

 

Attachments:  

 Memo from Mayor LaBonté 

 Public Services Committees 

 

 

Council Workshop Date:  August 5, 2013 Item  B 

Author:   Clint Deschene, City Manager 



City of Auburn, Maine 
___________________________      ______ 

Office of the Mayor 

60 Court Street  Suite 243  Auburn, ME 04210 

(207) 333-6601 ext. 1216  (207) 333-6621 Fax 

jlabonte@auburnmaine.gov 

www.auburnmaine.gov 
      

 

 

 

 

 

 
TO:  Members of the Auburn City Council 

FROM: Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

RE: Public Services Committees 

 

August 5, 2013 

 

Earlier this year, the City Council held a workshop to discuss a possible new policy committee 

structure that was designed to streamline the review of initiatives and policies by having a half a 

dozen Council oversight committees (Community and Economic Development, Public Health 

and Safety, etc).  The more than two dozen existing committees within the city would report 

through those Council committees.  At the time, the Council believed creating new committees 

would create more work in their schedules so it was tabled. 

         

As part of the restructuring of service delivery and administration in several departments, the 

time is appropriate to review again the Council and public’s policy-making structure for the 

services delivered by those departments.  With well organized and well informed committees 

advising it, workshop and meeting time of the whole City Council will be more effectively used 

and more input, especially from residents, will result. 

 

If Councilors, residents or even staff are going to be encouraged to propose policies, projects or 

services (new, improved or elimination of any of those three areas), there needs to be a defined 

process for how those ideas are vetted and recommendations brought forward to the full Council.  

In addition, committees that meet regularly to review the status of plans and projects and review 

performance in various departments will allow more transparency and greater accountability to 

taxpayers and the public. 

  

Given the limited interest previously in creating new, overarching Committees for policy areas, 

the recommendation now is to review and refine existing committee purpose and structure so that 

is it efficiently aligned with the departmental structure and most helpful for advising the City 

Council on policy.  This approach, if followed, will still allow for more formal Council 

committees advising on full departments, but that step is not being taken now. 

 

The matrix that follows highlights the existing Committees within the proposed Public Services 

Department and their areas of jurisdiction.  Supporting documents are included as well that 

highlight existing authorization of committees either at the local or state level.  The initial focus 

is on the parks, recreation, open space, special events and recycling because of a number of 

emerging efforts from the budget as well as on-going studies. 



 

It is recommended that the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board, which currently is noted to 

have jurisdiction over parks management and maintenance as well as recreation programming 

citywide be more narrowly focused on recreation programs and special events.  With the 

consolidation of Parks and Recreation into Public Services, and parks staffing support shifting 

within that reporting structure, this will help to reduce overlapping staff support for a committee.  

In addition, the Council’s interest in better reviewing special event support, including the use of 

the $20,000 allocated in the FY14 budget, and the future of special revenue accounts makes this 

a strong fit.  A Recreation and Special Events Advisory Board could review the performance of 

existing programs (both for revenue and participation), review requests for city support for other 

events, and engage with partners around programming, all with the goal of providing 

recommendations to the City Council.  This would also include facility utilization, which is 

central to the Athletic Field assessment. 

 

The Lewiston-Auburn Community Forest Board, established through a resolve 13 years ago, has 

had overlapping jurisdiction with the current Parks and Recreation Advisory Board.  For 

example, there is currently a Joint Land Use Study underway for Mt. Apatite.  Mt. Apatite is a 

city park.  Mt. Apatite is a city forest.  Which of the two committees has oversight of this area?  

The same could be said of Pettingill Forest and several other locations in Auburn that are either 

city parks or wooded areas with trails connected to our schools.  Legislation was passed nearly 

25 years ago to encourage the creation of Conservation Commissions at the municipal level.  

This replaced the Parks Commission language that was in state law previously.  Given the 

number of cemeteries under Auburn’s management, small parks, and larger forested city parks, it 

is prudent to better define how a Committee could advise the Council and engage partners and 

residents about parks and open space needs and their management. 

 

Finally, the Council has approved a budget with a directive for staff to begin negotiating a 

contract for a new recycling program.   Without an existing City Committee in place to advise on 

that effort, I am proposing a Mayor’s Committee on Solid Waste Management that would be 

established as an ad-hoc committee to support the staff work on developing recommendations for 

single sort recycling for Auburn and promoting its roll out.  I’ve included some further details in 

the attached spreadsheets. 

 

There are a number of other committees that would fall under Public Services, in particular those 

around transportation.  Rather than have too many plates in the air at once, I recommend we 

walk refining these committees to a conclusion before tackling others. Should the Council be 

comfortable with these first committee descriptions, I am prepared to engage quickly with the 

existing Community Forest Board to discuss adapting its charge, it is my understanding that staff 

could initiate preparing language for refining the Recreation Advisory Board, and appointments 

to a Solid Waste Management Committee would be made by our next Council meeting date. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Name Origin Areas of Jurisdiction 

Parks and Recreation Advisory 

Board 

Established through 

ordinance 

(1) The review of existing programs 

of the parks and recreation 

department and the 

planning of revised, 

supplementary or new 

programs to meet the 

present and future needs of 

the city.  

(2) Coordination with volunteer 

and charitable 

organizations and those of 

other governmental units.  

(3) Developing recommendations 

for more efficient use of 

present facilities and 

personnel. 

(4) Improving communication 

regarding recreational 

needs  

(5) Investigation for financial 

assistance and the 

development of 

recommendations 

regarding participation 

Lewiston-Auburn Community 

Forest Board 

Established through a 

resolve of the Auburn City 

Council 

(1) Advocate for the community 

forest 

(2) Develop a plan for and 

management  community 

forest 

(3) Educate the communities  

(4) Raise funds 

(5) Develop and advise on policy 

changes for approval by the 

City Councils 

(6) Advise and consult on 

community forest issues and 

projects 



 

 

(7) Communicate and coordinate 

to avoid duplication of efforts 

and to combine resources to 

meet goals. 

Energy Committee (no longer 

established) 

Established previously as 

a Mayor’s Committee 

To advise on energy efficiency and 

energy options for public facilities and 

programs to support these areas for 

individual homes and businesses 

Recycling Committee (no longer 

established) 

Established previously as 

a Mayor’s Committee 

To advise on an approach to solid waste 

management in Auburn and to 

encourage residents to recycle 

   

Other Committees within Public 

Services 

  

Bicycle-Pedestrian Advisory 

Committee 

  

Lewiston-Auburn Transit 

Committee 

  

Androscoggin Transportation 

Resource Center 

  

Auburn-Lewiston Municipal 

Airport 

  

Lewiston-Auburn Railroad 

Company 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Recommended Committee Functions 

 

Name Former Name Areas of Jurisdiction 

Recreation and Special Events 

Advisory Board 

 

Would be important to consider 

having at least one Councilor on 

this Committee.  In addition, the 

involvement of the School 

Department and partner 

organizations should be 

considered (YMCA, CMCC, 

Balloon Festival, Dempsey 

Challenge, etc) 

Parks and Recreation 

Advisory Board 

(1) The review of existing 

recreation programs and 

special events supported by 

the City and the planning of 

revised, supplementary or 

new programs to meet the 

present and future needs of 

the city.  

(2) Coordination with volunteer 

and charitable 

organizations and those of 

other governmental units 

that provide special events 

or recreation programming 

in the City.  

(3) Developing recommendations 

for more efficient use of 

present facilities and 

personnel. 

(4) Improving communication 

regarding recreational 

needs  

(5) Investigation for financial 

assistance and the 

development of 

recommendations 

regarding participation 

Parks and Conservation 

Commission (could be a joint 

board with Lewiston) 

 

Would be important to consider 

having at least one Councilor on 

this Committee.  In addition, the 

involvement of the School 

Lewiston-Auburn 

Community Forest Board 

(1) Advocate for parks, 

conservation and open space in 

the community 

(2) Develop a plan for stewardship 

of community parks and forests 

(3) Educate the community 

(4) Raise funds 

(5) Develop and advise on policy 



 

 

Department and partner 

organizations should be 

considered. 

changes for approval by the 

City Councils 

(6) Advise and consult on 

community forest issues and 

projects 

Mayor’s Committee on Solid 

Waste Management 

This Committee, to be made up 

of no more than seven (7) 

residents will, ideally, include a 

at least one Councilor, at least 

one representative of Auburn’s 

schools, with the remainder 

being residents that bring 

expertise and energy to the topic 

of solid waste management and 

improving Auburn’s recycling. 

Established previously as 

a Mayor’s Committee 

To advise on an approach to solid waste 

management in Auburn and to 

encourage residents to recycle.  Serve 

as advisors to city staff in the 

development of a contract for services 

for solid waste management/recycling 

and facilitate gathering of public input. 

And to serve in a leadership capacity 

engaging the community during the 

roll-out of the program.  Staffing for the 

Committee will be at the Manager’s 

discretion. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

(Existing Ordinance on Parks and Recreation Advisory Board) 

PART II - CODE OF ORDINANCES 

Chapter 2 - ADMINISTRATION 

ARTICLE V. - BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES 

DIVISION 4. PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD 

Sec. 2-454. Established; membership. 

Sec. 2-455. Term of members. 

Sec. 2-456. Officers; rules of procedure; vacancies. 

Sec. 2-457. Duties. 

Secs. 2-458—2-482. Reserved. 

 

 

Sec. 2-454. Established; membership. 

(a) There shall be a parks and recreation advisory board, which shall be composed of eight members. 
All except the ex officio member of the board shall be appointed by the city council.  

(b) Of the seven appointed members, there shall be no more than two members from the same ward. A 
member shall forfeit his membership if he becomes a resident of a ward in which two members of the 
board already reside.  

(c) Serving as the ex officio member shall be the director of parks and recreation, who shall also serve 
as secretary to the board.  

(d) Nothing in this article shall preclude the creation of standing subcommittees. 

(Code 1967, § 18-3.1)  

Sec. 2-455. Term of members. 

All appointed members of the parks and recreation advisory board shall serve staggered two-year 
terms from the date of their appointment and thereafter until their successors are appointed beginning 
with the effective date of this Code. Members of the board may be appointed to succeed themselves.  

(Code 1967, § 18-3.3)  

Sec. 2-456. Officers; rules of procedure; vacancies. 

The parks and recreation advisory board shall elect a chair, a vice-chair and such other officers as it 
may require. The board shall develop such rules to govern its meetings and operations as it deems 
advisable. Upon the death, incapacity or removal from the city of any member, or if any member shall be 
absent without excuse for three consecutive meetings, the secretary of the board shall advise the city 
council that a vacancy exists and request the appointment of a replacement.  

(Code 1967, § 18-3.4)  



 

 

Sec. 2-457. Duties. 

The purpose of the parks and recreation advisory board shall be:  

(1) The review of existing programs of the parks and recreation department and the planning of 
revised, supplementary or new programs to meet the present and future needs of the city.  

(2) The coordination of existing programs and facilities of the recreation department with those of 
volunteer and charitable organizations and those of other governmental units.  

(3) Developing recommendations for more efficient use of present facilities and personnel. 

(4) Improving communication regarding the recreational needs of the city between the people and 
the recreation department, the city council, and other city departments.  

(5) The investigation of federal, state and private programs for financial assistance and the 
development of recommendations regarding participation in such programs by the city.  

(Code 1967, § 18-3.2) 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

(Current Resolve on Lewiston-Auburn Community Forest Board) 

 

30-A §3261. CONSERVATION COMMISSIONS 
(Existing Ordinance on Parks and Recreation Advisory Board) 

(Enabling Legislation that is Basis for Conservation Commissions in Communities Throughout Maine) 

 

30-A §3261. CONSERVATION COMMISSIONS 

 

Unless otherwise provided under their home rule authority, municipalities may establish conservation 

commissions as provided in this section. [1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW);  1987, c. 737, Pt. 
C, §106 (NEW);  1989, c. 6, (AMD);  1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD);  1989, c. 104, Pt. 

C, §§8, 10 (AMD).] 

1. Appointment of commissioners.  The municipal officers may appoint at least 3, but not more than 7, 

conservation commissioners. Members shall initially be appointed for terms of one, 2 and 3 years, such that the 

terms of approximately 1/3 of the members will expire each year. Their successors shall be appointed for terms of 3 

years each. Members shall serve until the appointment of their successors. 

The commission may recommend to the municipal officers that associate members be appointed to assist the 

commission as the commission requires. Associate members are nonvoting members. Their terms of office shall be 

for one, 2 or 3 years. 

[ 1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW);  1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW);  1989, c. 

6, (AMD);  1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD);  1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD) .] 

2. Duties of commission.  The commission shall: 

A. Keep records of its meetings and activities and make an annual report to the municipality; [1987, c. 

737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW);  1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW);  1989, c. 6, 

(AMD);  1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD);  1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD).] 

B. Conduct research, in conjunction with the planning board, if any, into the local land areas; [1987, c. 



 

 

737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW);  1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW);  1989, c. 6, 

(AMD);  1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD);  1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD).] 

C. Seek to coordinate the activities of conservation bodies organized for similar purposes; and [1987, c. 
737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW);  1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW);  1989, c. 6, 

(AMD);  1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD);  1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD).] 

D. Keep an index of all open areas within the municipality, whether publicly or privately owned, including 

open marshlands, swamps and other wetlands, for the purpose of obtaining information relating to the proper 

protection, development or use of those open areas. The commission may recommend to the municipal officers 

or any municipal body or board, or any body politic or public agency of the State, a program for the better 

protection, development or use of those areas, which may include the acquisition of conservation easements. 

(1) Any body politic or public agency of the State conducting planning operations with respect to open 

areas within a municipality having a conservation commission shall notify that conservation commission 

of all plans and planning operations at least 30 days before implementing any action under that plan. 
[1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW);  1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW);  

1989, c. 6, (AMD);  1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD);  1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 

(AMD).] 

[ 1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW);  1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW);  1989, c. 

6, (AMD);  1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD);  1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD) .] 

3. Powers of commission.  The commission may: 

A. Advertise, prepare, print and distribute books, maps, charts, plans and pamphlets which it considers 

necessary; [1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW);  1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW);  

1989, c. 6, (AMD);  1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD);  1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 

(AMD).] 

B. Have the care and superintendence of the public parks and, subject to the approval of the municipal officers, 

direct the expenditure of all money appropriated for the improvement of those parks; [1987, c. 737, 

Pt. A, §2 (NEW);  1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW);  1989, c. 6, (AMD);  

1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD);  1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD).] 

C. Acquire land in the municipality's name for any of the purposes set forth in this section with the approval of 

the municipal legislative body; and [1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW);  1987, c. 737, Pt. 

C, §106 (NEW);  1989, c. 6, (AMD);  1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD);  1989, c. 104, 

Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD).] 

D. Receive gifts in the municipality's name for any of the commission's purposes and shall administer the gift 

for those purposes subject to the terms of the gift. [1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW);  1987, 
c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW);  1989, c. 6, (AMD);  1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD);  

1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD).] 

[ 1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW);  1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW);  1989, c. 

6, (AMD);  1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD);  1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD) .] 

4. Park commission under previous law.  This section does not require a municipality which has previously 

created a park commission under prior law to establish a conservation commission. Any such park commission 

previously created may continue to operate as originally established. 

[ 1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW);  1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW);  1989, c. 

6, (AMD);  1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD);  1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD) .] 

SECTION HISTORY 
1987, c. 737, §§A2,C106 (NEW).  1989, c. 6, (AMD).  1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD).  

1989, c. 104, §§C8,10 (AMD). 

The State of Maine claims a copyright in its codified statutes. If you intend to republish this material, we require that you include 



 

 

the following disclaimer in your publication: 

All copyrights and other rights to statutory text are reserved by the State of Maine. The text included in this publication reflects 

changes made through the Second Regular Session of the 125th Maine Legislature, is current through September 1, 2012, and is 

subject to change without notice. It is a version that has not been officially certified by the Secretary of State. Refer to the Maine 

Revised Statutes Annotated and supplements for certified text. 

The Office of the Revisor of Statutes also requests that you send us one copy of any statutory publication you may produce. Our 

goal is not to restrict publishing activity, but to keep track of who is publishing what, to identify any needless duplication and to 

preserve the State's copyright rights. 

PLEASE NOTE: The Revisor's Office cannot perform research for or provide legal advice or interpretation of Maine law to the 

public. If you need legal assistance, please contact a qualified attorney. 

 

 



City Council 

Workshop Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Order authorizing the issuance of General Obligation Bonds and tax levy 

 

 

Information: This is the order authorizing the sale of $5,900,000 in General Obligation Bonds to finance the 

FY 13-14 Capital Improvement Projects passed by Council during the June 3
rd

, 2103 Council Meeting by a 5-2 

vote. (list attached). During the discussion prior to the vote on the entire CIP a number of individual items were 

passed (to remain on the CIP) by less than a 5-2 vote. These items are listed as follows: Engineering Major 

Drainage, ICT Network Security, Parks and Recreation Holder Tractor, Planning Municipal Street Light 

Purchase, Planning Traffic Signal Pole Replacement, Public Works Heavy Equipment (Dump Trucks), Public 

Works Vehicle (sign truck). 

 

 

Financial: N/A 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Informational session only, 1
st
 reading and public hearing will be scheduled 

for Monday, August 19, 2013 and the 2
nd

 reading and passage will be scheduled for Tuesday, September 3, 

2013. 

 

Previous Meetings and History:  

 

 

Attachments:  

 Approved CIP List 

 CIP voted on by Council 

 Minutes of June 3, 2013 

 Notice of Public Hearing 

 Draft Order 

 

Council Workshop Date:  August 5, 2013 Item  C 

Author:   Jill Eastman, Finance Director 



CITY OF AUBURN - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM
FY  2014

OPERATING BOND OTHER
ASSESSING
Vehicle Replacement $0

Total Assessing $0 $0 $0
AUBURN-LEWISTON AIRPORT
Loader/Sweeper Replacement $0
Mower Attachment $0

Total Auburn-Lewiston Airport $0 $0 $0
CITY CLERK
Record Restoration $12,500
Voting Booths $6,000

Total City Clerk $18,500 $0 $0
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
South Goff Street Extension $0

Total Economic Development $0 $0 $0
ENGINEERING
Drainage Projects:
   Major Areas $60,000
State Projects:
  MDOT Transportation Improvement Projects $500,000
Street Improvement Projects:
  Reclaim/Resurfacing Program $1,250,000
  Retaining Wall (Engineering and Design) $0
  Reconstruction/Construction Projects $1,000,000
  Bridge Repairs $125,000

Total Engineering Department $0 $2,935,000 $0
FIRE DEPARTMENT
Generator South Main Street Fire Station $0
Security/Proximity Locking System $0
Thermal Imaging Cameras $0
Reclaim and repave Central Station back yard $0
Tablets $0

Total Fire Department $0 $0 $0
INFORMATION COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY
Call Recording $0
Web Site - Second Phase $20,000 (1)
Network Security $40,000

Total ICT $0 $40,000 $20,000
LA911
Server Upgrade/Virtualization Project - Phase III $49,772 (1)

Total LA911 $0 $0 $49,772
LATC 
Bus Replacement Funds $40,000 (1)

Total LATC $0 $0 $40,000
PARKING FACILITIES
Mechanics Row Parking Garage Maintenance $0

Total Parking Facilities $0 $0 $0
PARKS & RECREATION
Asbestos Removal @ Hasty Community Center $85,000 (1)
Tractor w/Attachments $0
Replace Holder Tractor $165,000
Turf Machine $0 (3)
Remove Underground Storage Tank $0
Repair and Replace Playground Equipment City Wide $38,000 (1,3)
Hasty Window Replacement $46,000 (1)
Hasty Kitchen Upgrade $0 $0 $3,500 (1)



CITY OF AUBURN - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM
FY  2014

OPERATING BOND OTHER
Total Parks & Recreation $0 $165,000 $172,500

PLANNING & CODE DEPARTMENT
Municipal Street Light Purchase $750,000
Traffic Signal Pole Replacement $10,736
Street Light Pole Replacement and Wiring (21 poles) $25,000
Replacement of Traffic Signal Controller Equipment Fype TSII $0
Replace existing HPS fixtures and poles with LED fixtures $26,000
Traffic Signal Controller Upgrades $0
Vehicle Replacement $0
Comprehensive Plan Property Acquisition Program $0 (4)
Androscoggin Greenway Signage and Wayfinding Pilot Program $75,000 (4)

Total Planning & Code Department $0 $811,736 $75,000
POLICE DEPARTMENT
Scheduled Vehicle Replacement $70,000
Mobile Radio Replacement $20,000 $0 (1)

Total Police Department $90,000 $0 $0
PUBLIC LIBRARY
Building Improvements $24,136
HVAC Automation System $7,500
Technology Replacement $12,000

Total Public Library $19,500 $24,136 $0
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT  
Heavy Equipment
   Dump Trucks $320,000
   Street Sweeper $0
Vehicles $38,000
Floor Sweeper/Scrubber $0
Non Vehicle Equipment
   Trench Box $0 $17,000 (1)
   Message Sign Board $0
   Portable Traffic Signals $0
Replace Festival Plaza Canopies $20,000 (4)
Cemetery Improvements $24,000 (1)

Total Public Works Department $0 $358,000 $61,000
Contingency $66,128

Total Municipal Capital Improvements $128,000 $4,400,000 $418,272
SCHOOL DEPARTMENT $0 $1,500,000

Total School Department $0 $1,500,000 $0
Total Capital Improvement Program - Municipal and Schools $128,000 $5,900,000 $418,272

(1) Unallocated Bond Funds $285,272
(3) Recreation Special Revenue Funds $38,000
(4) Downtown TIF $95,000

$418,272



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  Joshua Shea, At Large 

David Young, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan LaBonte, Mayor 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 35-05132013 

 

ORDERED, that Capital Purchases (CIP) Bond Projects for FY 2014 in the amount of $6,500,000 

Acquisition of the following capital equipment and the design, construction, renovation, and rehabilitation  

of the following capital improvements, all constituting part of the City’s FY14 Capital Improvement Program: 

 

Department 

FY14 Projects Only                                              

(See CIP for full description) 

Proposed 

Financing CIP 

FY 2014 

CIP Bond 

School Building and Equipment Improvements Bond 

 

CIP $1,500,000  

Engineering Major Drainage Bond CIP $60,000  

Engineering MDOT Match   Bond CIP $500,000  

Engineering Reclaim/Resurface  Bond CIP $1,250,000  

Engineering Reconstruction Bond CIP $1,000,000  

Engineering Bridge Repairs Bond CIP $125,000  

ICT Network Security Bond CIP $40,000  

Parks & Recreation Holder Tractor Bond CIP $165,000 

Planning & Code Municipal Street Light Purchase Bond CIP $750,000 

Planning & Code Traffic Signal Pole Replacement Bond CIP $10,736 

Planning & Code Street Light Pole Replacement Bond CIP $25,000 

Planning & Code Replace Existing HPS Fixtures and Poles Bond CIP $26,000 

Library Building Improvements Bond CIP $24,136 

Public Works Heavy Equipment-Dump Trucks Bond CIP $320,000 

Public Works Vehicles Bond CIP $38,000 

Contingency Retained earnings for bid variances     $66,128  

 TOTALS   $5,900,000  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Passage on 6/3/2013, 5-2 (Councilors Gerry 

and Crowley opposed). 



{W3790491.1} 

CITY OF AUBURN  

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 

 
Pursuant to Section 8.13 of the City Charter, notice is hereby given that the Auburn City Council 

will hold a public hearing on Monday, August 19, 2013, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers, 

Auburn Hall, 60 Court Street on a proposed order authorizing the City’s general obligation bonds 

in the amount of $5,900,000 to finance the City’s FY14 Capital Improvement Program. 

 

Following the public hearing, the City Council expects to conduct the second reading and take 

final action on the order at the same September 3, 2013 meeting.   

 

The order is available for inspection at the City Clerk’s office during regular business hours. 

 

 

 



 

 

IN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING JUNE 3, 2013 VOL. 33 PAGE 132 

Mayor LaBonte called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. in the Council Chambers of Auburn 

Hall and led the assembly in the salute to the flag. All Councilors were present, however 

Councilor Young had to leave the meeting (excused) just before the City Budget Resolve 

discussion (Resolve 03-05202013). 
 

I. Consent Items*  
 

1. Order 43-06032013* 

Approving the Special Event and Charitable funding requests for the 2013 

Liberty Festival. 

 

Motion was made by Councilor Lafontaine and seconded by Councilor 

Young. Passage 6-1 (Councilor Crowley opposed). 

II.    Minutes   
 

Motion was made by Councilor LaFontaine and seconded by Councilor 

Gerry to accept the minutes of the May 20, 2013 City Council meeting. 

Passage 7-0. 

III.   Reports  

Mayor’s Report – The Mayor read a written statement he prepared in order to weigh in 

on what he called fragmented public policy making, numerous committees funded by tax 

payers but not accountable to them. He went on to say that after watching the movement 

of some individuals after Councils action a few weeks ago, he thought it was appropriate 

as Mayor to outline some concerns and partial information that was being discussed 

publicly and wanted to set the record straight regarding Councils decision regarding the 

downtown passenger rail service. A copy of the statement is on file in the Clerk’s office. 

          

City Committee Reports – Councilor Crowley and Councilor Walker submitted a 

written report.  

 

Councilor Reports-Councilor Walker reported on a Flag Day celebration to take place at 

the Veteran’s Memorial in Mt. Auburn Cemetery on Friday, June 14
th

. It is being 

presented by the City and Veteran groups including American Legion Post 153. All 

organizations Scouts, Fraternal Clubs, Color Guard, Honor Guard and Flag Bearers are 

invited to show their colors. Councilor Crowley submitted a written report. 

 

City Manager’s Report – City Manager Deschene submitted a written report and stated 

that a correction was made and would be corrected on the web. He also reported on the 

status of the search for an Ice Arena Manager. An announcement would be coming soon. 

Also as requested by Councilor Hayes, he offered an explanation on the establishment of 

the transportation committee. 

 

IV.    Communications, Presentations and Recognitions – None 

 



 

 

IN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING JUNE 3, 2013 VOL. 33 PAGE 133 

 

Item number 4 on the agenda under New Business was taken out of order (Hearing on a 

dangerous building at 9 Gamage Avenue).  

 

1. Hearing regarding a Dangerous Building at 9 Gamage Avenue, Auburn Maine,  pursuant 

to Title  17 M.R.S.A § 2851, et seq. 

 

2. Order 44-06032013  

Adopting the findings of fact, conclusions of law, and order of demolition 

for 9 Gamage Avenue. 

 

Motion was made by Councilor LaFontaine and seconded by Councilor 

Crowley. Passage 7-0. 

 

V.     Open Session  

 

 Gerry Berube, president of the Lewiston-Auburn Railroad Co. stated that the letter the 

Mayor mentioned in his earlier statement did not come from Lucien Gosselin but from 

the LA Railroad Board. He briefly went over the history of the LA Railroad Co.    

 Richard Trafton, one of the newest members of the LA Railroad Company said he said 

that he shares Mayor LaBonté’s concerns on speaking with one voice however he was 

also concerned about the method adopted at the last Council Meeting and feels it will be 

used as amunition. He said he supports the passenger rail in downtown Auburn and 

Lewiston and he also talked about the comprehensive plan. He said he thinks we can get 

there but doesn’t think we are using the right planning process. 

 Jeremiah Bartlett, 107 Shepley Street, said he is a resident of Auburn and has a 

transportation background and has a different view of how the comprehensive plan turned 

out. He said there is no sense putting the passenger rail at the airport first. He does not 

think it is effective, it would be expensive and costly. He also doesn’t think it would 

satisfy title 6 of the Civil Rights Act. He said that a downtown rail would be a statement 

to invest in our downtown. He urged the Council to make this their top priority. 

 Cynthia Jalbert, 11 Shepley Street gave kudos to the Kiwanis Club for hosting their 

pancake breakfast. She said she would also like to see the railway come to the downtown 

area and there is a need to bring more things in the downtown area. Next year she would 

like to see the solid waste recycling committee come back around. She also commented 

on Lewiston and CMMC for tearing down St. Josephs to build a parking lot.  

 Larry Pelletier, Second Street, Auburn, attended the installation of the new pumper truck 

at the New Auburn Fire Station. He said the truck was dedicated to Captain Millett, a 

fallen firefighter. 

 Michael Koch, 46 Gould Road, talked about the Downeaster versus the commuter train 

and said he was looking for clarity. He said he would like train service downtown if it is 

the Downeaster. 

 Ed Plourde, Chair of the Airport had a question about process and what happened at the 

last meeting and were there stake holders involved in that process. 



 

 

IN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING JUNE 3, 2013 VOL. 33 PAGE 134 

 

 Adam Lee, Main Street said he lives and works in downtown area for the past five years. 

He walks to work every day. He appreciates and respects the people who spoke in favor 

of the locating the rail at the airport but said he thinks it is shortsighted and it avoids the 

possibility we have of advancing the work that has been done in the past 5 years in the 

downtown area. He moved to Maine because he fell in love with the downtown Auburn 

area. 

 Christine Holden, Lewiston resident said she really likes mass transport and believes that 

economic development in our community is important. She said we need to think about 

the fact that a great variety of people need transport. She suggested that we go for what 

we want but have a back-up plan, be flexible, be inventive and do not draw a line in the 

sand. 

 Dan Herrick, 470 Hatch Road, thanked Councilor Gerry for asking the questions about 9 

Gamage Avenue on where the cost goes. He also talked about improvements in the New 

Auburn area and the new apartment building stating it looks good but who would want to 

live there with the headlights that come down Academy Street. He talked about an article 

he read in the Sun Journal on tax liens and foreclosures and wondered if anyone knew 

what was happening and why we are sending out less tax liens. He commented on a few 

concerns with the Mayor on his interaction with a Councilor at a previous meeting as 

well as the portrait presentations with former Mayor’s (John Jenkins, John Cleveland and 

Dick Gleason) and whether or not they were given an opportunity to speak during the 

presentations. He also said he commented on a concern he had regarding setting up a 

meeting with the City Manager. 

 Tammy Greishaber, 40 Lisbon Street Lewiston, former resident of Auburn. She said she 

thought the two cities should become one a long time ago and any decisions on one side 

of the river have an impact on the other side of the river. It has been a long time since 

there has been any vision implemented on either side of the river. The last was Lee 

Young and the plan that brought us the River Walk and Festival Plaza. There hasn’t been 

any since then. The Comprehensive Plan on both sides of the river has been pretty much 

the same way. Plans change and they should be flexible. The next two visionary plans 

that have come up in the last 6 months was LA Grows idea on Mill 5 but the group has 

not gotten any support and guidance on this project. The second most recent visionary 

plan for Auburn is to put the transit service in the downtown area. She thinks it is a 

wonderful idea.  

 Joe Mailey, Webster Street, Auburn said he is neither for nor against the rail but did not 

think there was enough culture here to attract people from Portland. He said they have to 

have something here for people to come.   

 Priscilla Miller, 211 Summer Street, commented on the train and wondered if anyone 

thought of the congestion of having that in town. She also commented on the train whistle 

and said Brunswick residents are complaining about the train whistles. She said Council 

should think of essentials and the Ice Rink is not essential. She said to look at County 

Government versus City Government and do we need to be giving them money.  

 Chip Morrison, 46 Lake Street, Auburn commented that there are many cultural activities 

in our community. He also gave formal testimony (a written copy of the testimony is on  



 

 

IN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING JUNE 3, 2013 VOL. 33 PAGE 135 

 

file in the Clerk’s Office) as president of the Chamber with over 1375 members. He talked 

about the budget amendment about the rail two weeks ago. Wordings of resolutions are 

important. People look at them. His plea was please be flexible if you can, don’t shut 

something off to make a point when you can keep all of your options open. 

  

VI.    Unfinished Business  

 

3. Order 35-05132013 
Adopting the 2013-2014 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Bond 

Projects. 

 

Motion was made by Councilor LaFontaine and seconded by Councilor 

Hayes to approve the order as postponed from the 5/20/2013 meeting 

which included the amendments proposed by Councilor Crowley; 

To remove all items with a useful life of less than 10 years, removing all 

routine maintenance items from the CIP and placing them under 

Operations, remove all vehicle purchases in both the CIP and Operational 

budgets for a 1 year period, to reinstate a policy where all vehicles that are 

not in use be garaged in Auburn, and not to approve the CIP until the 

enterprise accounts for Ingersoll Arena and the new Dual Sheet Arena are 

included in the overall budget for the public to view. Motion failed 3-4 

(Councilors Hayes, LaFontaine, Shea, and Young opposed). 

 

Motion was made by Councilor Walker and seconded by Councilor 

Crowley to amend to remove the Engineering Major Drainage Project 

from the CIP Budget. Motion failed 3-4 (Councilors Gerry, Hayes, 

LaFontaine, and Shea opposed). 

 

Motion was made by Councilor Walker and seconded by Councilor 

Crowley to remove the Engineering Retaining Wall project from the CIP 

Budget. Passage 5-2 (Councilors Gerry and LaFontaine opposed).  

 

Motion was made by Councilor Walker and seconded by Councilor 

Crowley to remove the Engineering Bridge repairs from the CIP Budget. 

Motion failed 2-5 (Councilors Shea, Young, LaFontaine, Hayes, and 

Gerry opposed).   

 

Motion was made by Councilor Walker and seconded by Councilor 

Crowley to remove ICT call recording from the CIP Budget. Passage 6-1 

(Councilor LaFontaine opposed).  

 

Motion was made by Councilor Walker and seconded by Councilor 

Crowley to remove the ICT Network Security from the CIP Budget. 

Motion failed 3-4 (Councilors Gerry, Hayes, Young, and Shea opposed).  



 

 

IN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING JUNE 3, 2013 VOL. 33 PAGE 136 

 

Motion was made by Councilor Walker and seconded by Councilor 

Crowley to remove from Parking Facilities the Mechanics Row Garage 

maintenance from the CIP Budget. Passage 5-2 (Councilors Gerry and 

LaFontaine opposed). 

 

Motion was made by Councilor Walker and seconded by Councilor 

Crowley to remove the Parks & Recreation tractor from the CIP Budget. 

Passage 5-2 (Councilors Hayes and LaFontaine opposed).  

 

Motion was made by Councilor Walker and seconded by Councilor 

Crowley to remove the Parks & Recreation Holder Tractor from the CIP 

Budget. Motion failed 2-4 (Councilors Gerry, Hayes, Shea, and 

LaFontaine opposed).   

 

Motion was made by Councilor Walker and seconded by Councilor 

Crowley to remove the Parks & Recreation underground tank removal 

from the CIP Budget. Passage 7-0.   

 

Motion was made by Councilor Walker and seconded by Councilor 

Crowley to remove from Planning the Municipal Street Light Purchase 

from the CIP Budget. Motion failed 3-4 (Councilors Crowley, Hayes, 

Lafontaine, and Shea opposed).  

 

Motion was made by Councilor Walker and seconded by Councilor 

Crowley to remove from Planning the Traffic Signal Pole Replacement 

from the CIP Budget.  Motion failed 3-4 (Councilors LaFontaine, Shea, 

Gerry, and Hayes opposed). 

 

Motion was made by Councilor Walker and seconded by Councilor 

Crowley to remove from Public Works the Heavy Equipment dump trucks 

from the CIP Budget.  Motion failed 3-4 (Councilors Gerry, LaFontaine, 

Young, and Shea opposed). 

 

Motion was made by Councilor Walker and seconded by Councilor 

Crowley to remove from Planning the Traffic Signal Controller Upgrades 

from the CIP Budget. Passage 4-3 (Councilors Gerry, Hayes, and Shea 

opposed). 

 

Motion was made by Councilor Walker and seconded by Councilor 

Crowley to remove from Public Works the street sweeper from the CIP 

Budget. Passage 7-0.   

 

Motion was made by Councilor Walker and seconded by Councilor 

Crowley to remove from Public Works vehicles from the CIP Budget.  



 

 

IN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING JUNE 3, 2013 VOL. 33 PAGE 137 

 

Motion failed 3-4 (Councilors Gerry, Hayes, LaFontaine, and Shea 

opposed).  

 

Motion was made by Councilor Walker and seconded by Councilor 

Crowley to remove from Public Works floor sweeper/scrubber from the 

CIP Budget.  Passage 7-0.   

 

Motion was made by Councilor Crowley and seconded by Councilor 

Walker that the total CIP Budget for FY14 not exceed 12% of 

expenditures. Passage 5-2 (Councilors Hayes and LaFontaine opposed). 

 

Motion was made by Councilor Crowley and seconded by Councilor 

Walker that no CIP dollars for FY14 be spent on an item that has a useful 

life of less than 10 years. The Mayor declared the motion to be out of 

order because it would be a vote to reconsider two of Councilor Walkers 

amendments, in which Councilor Crowley voted in the affirmative.   

 

Motion was made by Councilor Crowley and seconded by Councilor 

Walker to amend by removing the library building improvements and 

using downtown TIF dollars instead. Point of information by the City 

Manager, that is not an allowed use of downtown TIF dollars. 

 

Motion by Councilor Crowley and seconded by Councilor Walker for the 

City to reaffirm Council policy that no Auburn owned vehicles will be 

garaged outside of Auburn when not in city service. The policy is in place 

to manage vehicle cost and to preserve the resource for city business. 

Passage 4-3 (Councilors Hayes, LaFontaine, and Shea opposed). 

 

Motion was made by Councilor Walker and seconded by Councilor 

LaFontaine to reconsider the amendment to remove from ICT the Call 

Recording. Passage 7-0. 

 

Passage on order as amended, 5-2 (Councilors Gerry and Crowley 

opposed). 

 

4. Order 36-05132013 
Adopting the 2013-2014 Capital Improvement Program (CIP2) Other 

Funding Projects. 

 

Motion was made by Councilor LaFontaine and seconded by Councilor 

Walker to approve the order as postponed from the 5/20/2013 meeting 

which included the amendment proposed by Councilor LaFontaine to 

remove the Pettengill Playground items and Festival Plaza Canopy 

replacement for at least 1 year. Passage 6-1 (Councilor Shea opposed). 



 

 

 

IN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING JUNE 3, 2013 VOL. 33 PAGE 138 

 

Motion was made by Councilor Crowley and seconded by Councilor 

Walker to amend that the ICT website site second phase from the CIP2 

budget be approved, but the project be outsourced and not done by staff 

unless it can be completed for less money than the $20,000 and 

implemented by January 1, 2014. Motion failed 2-5 (Councilors Gerry, 

Hayes, LaFontaine, Young, and Shea opposed). 

 

Motion by Councilor Crowley and seconded by Councilor Gerry to amend 

that the Parks & Recreation Department be allocated $38,000 to repair and 

replace playground equipment city wide. Passage 7-0. 

 

Motion was made by Councilor Crowley and seconded by Councilor 

Walker to amend by allocating up to $20,000 to place flags at Festival 

Plaza. Passage 4-3 (Councilors Hayes, LaFontaine, and Shea opposed). 

 

Motion was made by Councilor Crowley and seconded by Councilor 

Walker to amend that the Public Works request for Oak Hill Cemetery 

building improvements from the CIP2 budget be changed to make 

necessary repairs to cemeteries and not limited to Oak Hill. Passage 4-2-1 

(Councilors LaFontaine and Hayes opposed, Councilor Shea abstained). 

 

Motion was made by Councilor Crowley and seconded by Councilor 

Walker to amend by removing the Parks & Recreation Department turf 

machine from the CIP2 budget. Passage 4-3 (Councilors Gerry, Hayes, 

Lafontaine opposed). 

 

Motion was made by Councilor Crowley and seconded by Councilor 

Walker to amend by removing the amount the Planning Department wants 

for the Comprehensive Plan Property Acquisition Program from the CIP2 

budget. Passage 6-1 (Councilor LaFontaine opposed). 

 

Motion was made by Councilor Crowley and seconded by Councilor 

Walker to amend by removing the Police Mobile Radio replacement from 

the CIP2 budget (and move to operations). Passage 4-3 (Councilors Gerry, 

Hayes, and LaFontaine opposed).  

 

Motion was made by Councilor Crowley and seconded by Councilor 

Walker to amend by removing the Public Works trench box from the CIP2 

budget. Motion failed 2-5 (Councilors Gerry, Hayes, LaFontaine, Young, 

and Shea opposed). 

 

Motion was made by Councilor Crowley and seconded by Councilor 

Walker to amend by using $85,000 unallocated bond funds to address  



 

 

IN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING JUNE 3, 2013 VOL. 33 PAGE 139 

 

Hasty Community Center’s safety issue (removal of asbestos). Passage 6-

0-1 (Councilor Hayes abstained). 

 

Motion was made by Councilor Crowley and seconded by Councilor 

Gerry to amend by using downtown TIF monies to buy walk behind 

mowers if they are to be used in the downtown parks and be available for 

cemetery work. After some discussion as to whether TIF monies could be 

used for this, Councilors Crowley and Gerry withdrew the motion and 

second until there is further clarification. 

 

Motion was made by Councilor Crowley and seconded by Councilor 

Gerry to amend that the portion of unallocated bond proceeds to pay off 

the Ingersoll Arena debt be held in reserve. Passage 5-2 (Councilors Gerry 

and Hayes opposed). 

 

Motion was made by Councilor Walker and seconded by Councilor Gerry 

to amend by adding the Hasty Community Center kitchen upgrade to the 

CIP2 budget ($3,500 out of unallocated bond proceeds). Passage 7-0. 

 

Motion was made by Councilor Walker and seconded by Councilor Gerry 

to amend by adding the Hasty Community Center window replacement to 

the CIP2 budget ($46,000 from unallocated bond proceeds). Passage 5-1-1 

(Councilor Hayes opposed and Councilor Shea abstained). 

 

Motion by Councilor LaFontaine and seconded by Councilor Hayes to 

reconsider the Hasty Community Center upgrades ($134,500). Passage to 

reconsider 4-3 (Councilors Gerry, Crowley, and Walker opposed).  

 

Passage on the reconsideration in support of the $134,500 investment in 

upgrades to the Hasty Community Center, 4-3 (Councilors Hayes, 

LaFontaine, and Young opposed). 

 

Public comment – no one from the public spoke. 

 

Passage of the order as amended, 7-0. 

 

5. Resolve 03-05202013   

Adopting the City Budget for Fiscal Year 2014 (first reading). 

 

The Mayor clarified that the amended language that was adopted from the 

May 20, 2013 meeting was to be added to the Resolve (that the City 

Manager shall propose and have established by the Auburn City Council a 

contract with LAEGC for services to be provided to the City of Auburn  

 



 

 

IN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING JUNE 3, 2013 VOL. 33 PAGE 140 

 

for economic development to occur within 5 months of the fiscal year with 

the consequence being the elimination of funding). 

 

Motion was made by Councilor Lafontaine and seconded by Councilor 

Shea to remove the Budget Resolve off the table as it was postponed from 

the 5/20/2013 meeting. Passage 5-0-1 (Councilor Crowley abstained). 

 

The motion that was left on the table from the 5/20/2013 meeting was a 

motion by Councilor Crowley and seconded by Councilor Hayes to amend 

by offering in lieu of providing cell phones and smart phones under a city 

contract that employees be offered a $25 per month stipend. Motion failed 

3-4 (Councilors Gerry, LaFontaine, and Shea opposed, and the Mayor 

voted in opposition breaking the tie vote). 
 

Motion was made by Councilor LaFontaine and seconded by Councilor 

Walker to reconsider what was labeled as amendment (C) from the 

5/20/2013 meeting on the downtown rail. Motion failed 2-4 (Councilors 

Gerry, Crowley, Walker, and Shea opposed). 

 

Motion was made by Councilor LaFontaine and seconded by Crowley to 

add a $20,000 line in the budget for L-A Arts, $10,000 of which would 

support the arts and culture in L-A and another $10,000 in match by the 

City of Auburn only if they were awarded the Creative Community 

Economic Development Grant. 

 

Motion was made by Councilor Shea and seconded by Councilor Gerry to 

amend the amendment to fund the Creative Community Economic 

Development Grant and strike the $10,000 to support the arts and culture 

in L-A. Passage 6-0. 

 

Passage of the amendment as amended, 6-0. 

 

Motion was made by Councilor Crowley and seconded by Councilor 

LaFontaine to postpone the budget resolve discussion to a Special Meeting 

on June 10, 2013, motioned failed 3-4 (Councilors Gerry, Walker and 

Shea opposed and the Mayor voted in opposition breaking the tie vote). 

 

Motion by Councilor Crowley and seconded by Councilor Walker to 

amend the resolve to hold all the departmental budgets that are above the 

1.7% expenditure increase reduce their budget to a 1.7% expenditure  

increase. Motion failed 3-4 (Councilors Hayes, LaFontaine and Shea 

opposed and the Mayor voted in opposition breaking the tie vote). 

 

 



 

 

IN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING JUNE 3, 2013 VOL. 33 PAGE 141 

 

Motion by Councilor Crowley to limit the FY14 budget so the mill rate 

would not exceed 20.41 per thousand which is a 4.91 % over last year’s 

mill rate. Motion failed for lack of a second. 

 

Motion by Councilor Walker and seconded by Councilor Crowley to set 

the mill rate be set at 19.59. Motion failed 3-4 (Councilors Hayes, 

LaFontaine, and Shea opposed and the Mayor voted in opposition 

breaking the tie vote). 

 

Motion by Councilor Crowley and seconded by Councilor Gerry to cut 

$5,000 from the debt service account since there was no explanation of 

services. Passage 5-1 (Councilor LaFontaine opposed). 

 

Motion was made by Councilor Crowley and seconded by Councilor 

Hayes to postpone the budget resolve as it stands to a special meeting on 

June 10. Motion failed 3-4 (Councilors LaFontaine, Walker, and Shea 

opposed and the Mayor voted in opposition breaking the tie vote). 

 

Motion was made by Councilor Walker and seconded by Councilor 

Crowley to consolidate the Parks and Recreation Department under Public 

Works Department. Motion failed 1-5 (Councilors Gerry, Crowley, Hayes, 

LaFontaine, and Shea opposed). 

 

Public comment – no one from the public spoke. 

 

Passage to approve the first reading, 4-3 (Councilor Gerry, Crowley and 

Hayes were opposed and the Mayor voted in support breaking the tie 

vote).  

 

VII.     New Business 

 

 Motion by Councilor LaFontaine and seconded by Councilor Crowley to 

postpone the remainder of items on the agenda until the June 17, 2013 

meeting. Passage 4-2 (Councilors Hayes and Shea opposed). 

 

6. Ordinance 05-06032013   

Approving the newly proposed Flea Market license fee schedule (first 

reading).  

 

7. Ordinance 06-06032013   

Approving the newly proposed Peddlers license fee schedule (first 

reading).  

 

8. Resolve 04-06032013   



 

 

IN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING JUNE 3, 2013 VOL. 33 PAGE 142 

Supporting the Emergency Medical Services.  

 

9. Ordinance 07-06032013   

Approving the proposed ordinance amendment on alcoholic beverages at 

Mass Gatherings (first, second, and final readings).  

 

10. Ordinance 08-06032013   

Approving the proposed Forestry Board Ordinance (first reading).  

 

VIII. Executive Session 

 Discussion on Labor Negotiations (proposed MSEA contract) , pursuant to 

1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(D)  
 

VIII. Open Session  

 Joe Gray, Sopers Mill Road commented on Mr. Morrison who spoke earlier about the rail 

service, and how it has been in progress for two or more decades, it is time that 

something gets done. He said even if you disagree about the location, the fact that there is 

an objective and we are moving forward, that is a good sign.   

   
IX. Future Agenda/Workshop Items – None 

   

X. Adjournment 
 

Motion was made by Councilor Crowley and seconded by Councilor LaFontaine to 

adjourn.  Passage 6-0. 11:01 P.M. 

 

 

 

A True Copy. 

      ATTEST_________________________________ 

          Susan Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One  Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three Joshua Shea, At Large 

David Young, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan LaBonte, Mayor 

 

 

W3790235.1}{W3790235.1}          Page 1 of 2 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER xx-08192013   

 
 
Ordered that the Auburn City Council, following a public hearing duly called and held as required by 

Article 8, Section 8.13 of the Auburn City Charter, be and hereby is authorized the issuance and sale of 

the City’s general obligation bonds on either a taxable or a tax-exempt basis in the amount of $5,900,000, 

the proceeds of which, including premium, if any, and investment earnings thereon, are hereby 

appropriated to finance the following capital equipment and capital improvements (including costs of 

issuance for the bonds), all constituting part of the City’s FY14 Capital Improvement Program: 

 

Department 

FY14 Projects Only                                              

(See CIP for full description) 

FY 2014 CIP 

Bond 

School 

Building and Equipment 

Improvements $1,500,000  

Engineering Major Drainage $60,000  

Engineering MDOT Match   $500,000  

Engineering Reclaim/Resurface  $1,250,000  

Engineering Reconstruction $1,000,000  

Engineering Bridge Repairs $125,000  

ICT Network Security $40,000  

Parks & Recreation Holder Tractor $165,000 

Planning & Code Municipal Street Light Purchase $750,000 

Planning & Code Traffic Signal Pole Replacement $10,736 

Planning & Code Street Light Pole Replacement $25,000 

Planning & Code 

Replace Existing HPS Fixtures and 

Poles $26,000 

Library Building Improvements $24,136 

Public Works Heavy Equipment-Dump Trucks $320,000 

Public Works Vehicles $38,000 

Contingency Retained earnings for bid variances $66,128  

 TOTAL $5,900,000  

 

THAT the bonds shall be issued as authorized hereunder and shall be signed by the City’s Finance 

Director and its Treasurer, attested by the City Clerk under the seal of the City.  A tax levy is hereby 

provided for each fiscal year that the bonds authorized hereunder remain outstanding to meet the annual 

installments of principal and interest as may accrue in each respective year.  The bonds may be issued at 

one time or from time to time, either singly or in series, and the authority and discretion to fix method of 

sale, issue date, maturities, denominations, interest rate, place of payment, form and other details of said 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One  Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three Joshua Shea, At Large 

David Young, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan LaBonte, Mayor 

 

 

W3790235.1}{W3790235.1}          Page 2 of 2 

bonds and notes, and to take all other actions and to sign and deliver all other documents, certificates and 

agreements in order to provide for the sale thereof is hereby delegated to the City’s Finance Director. 

THAT in order to finance temporarily the projects described above, the Finance Director is authorized to 

expend up to $5,600,000 either from available funds of the City or from the proceeds of BAN’s which 

would be reimbursed or refinanced from bond proceeds. 

 

THAT in order to finance temporarily the projects described above, the Finance Director is authorized to 

expend up to $5,900,000 either from available funds of the City or from the proceeds of BAN’s which 

would be reimbursed or refinanced from bond proceeds. 

 

THAT the bonds authorized hereunder may be made subject to call for redemption, either with or without 

premium, on such terms as may be determined by the Finance Director. 

 

THAT the authority and discretion to designate the bond or notes, or a portion thereof, as qualified tax-

exempt obligations under Section 265 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, is hereby 

delegated to the Finance Director. 

 

THAT the City’s Finance Director, Treasurer, Clerk, and other proper officials of the City be, and hereby 

are, authorized and empowered in its name and on its behalf to do or cause to be done all such acts and 

things, and to execute, deliver, file, approve, and record all financing documents, contracts, agreements, 

certificates, preliminary and final official statements, tax certificates and other documents as may be 

necessary or advisable, with the advice of counsel for the City, to carry out the provisions of this order, as 

may be necessary or desirable. 

 

THAT if the Finance Director, Treasurer, or Clerk are for any reason unavailable to approve and execute 

the bonds or any related financing documents, the person or persons then acting in any such capacity, 

whether as an assistant, a deputy, or otherwise, is authorized to act for such official with the same force 

and effect as if such official had himself or herself performed such act. 

 

THAT this order is a declaration of official intent pursuant to Treas. Reg. § 1.150-2 and shall be kept 

available for public inspection during reasonable business hours at the office of the City Clerk. 

 

A Public Notice describing the general purpose of the borrowing and the terms thereof was published on 

or before August 5, 2013, in the Lewiston Sun-Journal, a daily newspaper published in the City of 

Auburn and in Androscoggin County.   

 

A public hearing was held on August 19, 2013.   

 
     



City Council 

Workshop Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject:   Ordinance regarding Synthetic Drugs 

 

Information: The Police Department is requesting that the City Council consider adopting a new ordinance 

regulating the sale and possession of synthetic drugs. This ordinance is addressed as a class of drugs known 

initially as bath salts. As regulations have been placed on these substances, manufacturers have slightly 

modified them to sidestep the regulations. This ordinance would address that issue and is modeled after 

ordinances adopted in several other communities, most notably Bangor which has experienced significant 

problems associated with these drugs. 

 

 

Financial: N/A 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Discussion and future action 

 

Previous Meetings and History:  N/A 

 

Attachments: Proposed Ordinance 

Council Workshop Date:  August 5
th

, 2013 Item  D 

Author:   Jason Moen, Deputy Chief of Police 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  Joshua Shea, At Large 

David Young, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan LaBonte, Mayor 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

           

ORDINANCE  XX-08192013 

 
ORDERED, that the Code of Ordinances be and hereby is amended as follows: 

 

 
AN ORDINANCE PERTAINING TO SYNTHETIC DRUGS 

THE CITY OF AUBURN HEREBY ORDAINS: 

Chapter 32 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Auburn, Maine is hereby amended as follows: 

Chapter 32 Offenses 

Article I, In General 

Sec. 32.7-XX Purpose. 

The purpose of this article is to regulate the availability of products which are enhanced with synthetic 

chemicals, which chemicals mimic the effects of controlled substances on users, because these products are a 

danger to the public health, safety and welfare. 

Sec. 32.7-XX Definitions 

For purposes of interpreting this article, the following terms, phrases, words and their derivatives shall have the 

meanings given herein unless the context clearly indicates or requires a different meaning: 

 

SPICE, SYNTHETIC CANNABINOIDS, SYNTHETIC MARIJUANA - Any aromatic plant material in 

granular, loose leaf or powder form, or in liquid or as a food additive, or any herbal-incense-type stimulant or 

hallucinogen product, when the label is in any way false or misleading, or which does not contain a label 

specifying (1) the identity of the commodity and (2) the name and place of business of the manufacturer, 

packer, or distributor. Street names for these products include, but are not limited to: Bliss, Black Mamba, 

Bombay Blue, Fake Weed, Genie, Spice, Zohai, K2, K3, Smoke, PotPourri, Buzz, Spice 99, Voodoo, Pulse, 

Hush, Mystery, Earthquake, Stinger, Ocean Blue, Serenity, Chronic Spice, Spice Gold, Spice Silver, Skunk, Mr. 

Nice Guy, Mr. Happy, K3 Legal, Sence, Smoke, Chill X, Earth Impact, Galaxy Gold, Space Truckin, Solar 

Flare, Moon Rocks, Aroma, Scope, Sky High, Atomic, G-20, Guerrilla Warfare, Makes Scents, g-I3, Tiger 

Shark, California Dreams, Dank, Bullet, Mind Trip, Voodoo Child, Jazz, Nightlights, Matrix, Hypnotiq, AK47, 

Maui Wowie, Cloud 9, Daylights, Joker, Dead Man Walking, Brain Storm, Soul Sence, Kush, Kush Mania, 

Dragons Fire, Lucid, Mad Hatter, Scooby Snax, D-ZL, OMG, Demon, Barely In, Pineapple Express, Hayze. 

This definition shall include any plant material to which any Synthetic Chemical or Synthetic Chemical 

Compound has been added which has no legitimate relation to the advertised use of the product whether or not 

the label meets the requirements herein. 

 

BATH SALTS, SYNTHETIC CATHINONES, SYNTHETIC STIMULANTS - Any crystalline or powder 

product in crystalline, loose-powder, block, tablet, or capsule form, or any stimulant-type product, when the 



 

Page 2 of 3 

 

label is in any way false or misleading. Street names for these products include, but are not limited to: Bliss, 

Blue Silk, Cloud Nine, Drone, Energy-I, Ivory Wave, Lunar Wave, Meow Meow, Ocean Burst, Pure Ivory, 

Purple Wave, Red Dove, Snow Leopard, Stardust, Vanilla Sky, White Dove, White Knight, White Lightening, 

Blizzard, Bonzai Grow, Charge Plus, Charlie, Euphoria, Hurricane, Lunar Wave, Ocean, Pixie Dust, Posh, 

Scarface, Lovely Dovey, Aura, MDPV, MDPK, MTV, Maddie, Hurricane Charlie, Black Rob, Super Coke, PV, 

Peeve, Meph, Drone, MCAT. This definition shall include any product to which any Synthetic Chemical or 

Synthetic Chemical Compound has been added which has no legitimate relation to the advertised use of the 

product whether or not the label meets the requirements herein. 

 

DRUG - An article that is intended to affect the function of the body of humans. 

 

MISBRANDED DRUG - Any drug for which the label is in any way false or misleading. 

 

ILLICIT SYNTHETIC DRUGS - Spice, synthetic cannabinoids, synthetic marijuana, bath salts, synthetic 

cathinones, synthetic stimulants, and misbranded drugs as defined herein. 

 

SYNTHETIC CHEMICAL OR SYNTHETIC CHEMICAL COMPOUND - Any chemical or chemical 

compound whose molecular make up is similar to those substances listed as controlled substances in 17-A 

M.R.S. § 1101(16-A) (including any isomers, esters, ethers, salts, and salts of isomers, esters, and ethers of such 

substances) or to those substances listed in 17-A M.R.S. § 1102(4) (F) and whose intended use when introduced 

into the human body is to mimic or simulate the effects of a controlled substance. 

 

Sec 32.7-XX Prohibition of Illicit Synthetic Drugs. 

A. It is unlawful for any person to possess, use, provide, sell, produce, manufacture, or distribute, or to 

offer, display, market, or advertise for sale, any illicit synthetic drug. 

B. In determining whether a product is prohibited by this article, statements on package labeling such as 

"not for human consumption" may be disregarded when other relevant factors (viewed alone or in 

totality) indicate that the product is intended to be consumed or ingested by humans, or is a product 

regulated by this article. Other relevant factors that may be used to determine whether a product or sale 

is prohibited by this article include, but are not limited to: verbal or written representations at the point 

of sale regarding the purpose, methods, use, or effect of the product; aspects of the packaging or labeling 

suggesting that the user will achieve a "high," euphoria, relaxation, mood enhancement, or that the 

product has other effects on the body; the cost of the product is disproportionately higher than other 

products marketed for the same use; the product contains a warning label stating or suggesting that the 

product is in compliance with state laws regulating controlled substances; the product's name or 

packaging uses images or slang referencing an illicit street drug; illicit or underground methods of sale 

or delivery are employed by the seller or provider; the product resembles an illicit street drug such as 

cocaine, methamphetamine, or marijuana. 

C. Defense. It shall be a defense to the prosecution of a violation of this article that a product is specifically 

excepted by, or regulated within and in compliance with, state or federal law. For the purposes of this 

section, it shall not be a defense that a product is not subject to regulation unless the product is 



 

Page 3 of 3 

 

specifically excepted from regulation; mere "non-regulation" by these acts without a specific regulatory 

exemption does not render a product exempt under this section. 

Sec. 32.7-XX Sale of Certain Products for Human Consumption Prohibited 

It is unlawful for any person to provide, sell, or offer for sale a product for human consumption when the 

product is labeled "not for human consumption" or contains similar warnings. 

Sec 32.7-XX Violation and Seizure 

A. Each package shall be a separate violation. The fine for each violation shall be $500. 

B. Any products found in violation of this section may be seized and held as evidence to be used in any 

future proceeding and may be disposed of as appropriate after their use for evidentiary purposes is no 

longer required. 



City Council 

Workshop Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: New Business - Legends Sports Bar and Grill – application for a Liquor License and Special 

Amusement Permit  

 

Information: Legends Sports Bar and Grill (Dan and Melinda Small) located at 128 Center Street (formerly 

Rack M Up Billiards, LLC) applied for a Liquor License (Food Service Class I -Spirituous, Vinous, Malt), and 

a Special Amusement Permit. They are currently doing some renovating but are hoping to open on Thursday, 

August 22
nd

. This has been submitted to Police, Fire, Code, and Finance for approval and we are tentatively 

planning on placing this on the August 19, 2013 agenda for a public hearing and action, pending approval from 

the applicable departments. 

 

 

Financial: N/A 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting:  Discussion today and will be placed on the August 19, 2013 agenda for a 

public hearing and action. 

 

Previous Meetings and History: N/A 

 

 

Attachments:  

Applications and background checks 

 

Council Workshop Date:  August 5, 2013 Item  E 

Author:   Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 



















































City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Casting votes for the Maine Municipal Association’s (MMA) Vice President and Executive Committee 

Members. 
 

Information: Annually the City Council must cast a ballot for the Executive Committee of MMA.  The process 

used has all candidates meet a committee of Executive Committee appointees (5 People) to interview all 

candidates and develop a recommended list.  The only way to appear on a ballot is being nominated to fill a 

position or petition to have your name appear.  Auburn shared concerns on this process last year and the 

committee left the process intact.  I am requesting the Council authorize me to cast a ballot in favor of the 

proposed candidates.   

 

Financial: None 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Authorize Manager 

 

Previous Meetings and History:  

 

 

Attachments:  

Note from Maine Municipal Association 

Voting Ballot 

Biographical Sketch of Proposed Nominees for 2014 

Order 59-08052013 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Council Meeting Date:  August 5, 2013 Order  59-08052013* 

Author:   Clint Deschene, City Manager 



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 











Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  Joshua Shea, At Large 

David Young, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 59-08052013 

 

 
 
Ordered that the City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to cast a ballot in favor of the proposed 

candidates for the Maine Municipal Association’s Vice President (Marston Lovell), and Executive Committee (James 

Chaousis, Linda Cohen, and Mary Sabins).   

 

 



























Auburn Water District Report for Meeting Monday 2013.08.05 

Prepared:   Wednesday 2013.07.31  

TO:  Residents of Auburn and the Auburn City Council 

FROM:  Tizz E. H. Crowley- Auburn City Council Ward 1 

  Mayor LaBonte’s representative to AWD 

 

The Auburn Water District Trustees met on Wednesday, July 17, 2013. 

 

A review of the financial reports indicates revenues are down about 2% as compared to last year, but the District 

should be able to meet budget objectives at year end.  The District is still waiting for the insurance company to 

reimburse approximately $61,000 for damages at the UV plant earlier this year.  There was comment that while 

the District spends a significant amount (2013 budget= $87,599) on gull management, yet observers see many 

ducks and geese at Lake Grove and near Taber’s.  

 

Preliminary discussion regarding possible rate increases occurred.  I would expect a decision at the next meeting 

so public hearings could occur in the fall if needed. Trustees are carefully evaluating both the amount and the 

schedule for future rate increases.  The Board is committed to maintaining our regular infrastructure of pipes as 

we monitor the need for an algaecide application with an ALUM project to follow the next year.  The ALUM 

project is estimated to cost $1M.  It was reported LAWPC may request an additional $150,000 per year, for the 

next 10 years, from each city for lake remediation and land acquisition. 

 

Review of paid bills brought up a surprising cost… the AWD pays the Maine PUC an annual assessment of $12, 162 

which is not the only assessment to the District from the State. I cannot tell you what the value of these expenses 

are to the rate payer, but the District has no option but to pay. 

 

The Trustees reviewed the Clean Water Act Master Plan 10 Year Update approval letter received by the District.  

Future conversation will be needed to address code violations, such as flat roofs, and how the District may assist 

customers with these challenges. 

 

As a Water District Trustee, I recommended the AWD discontinue testing the water at the municipal beach.  The 

standards, established by the City Council exceed the standard for our ocean coast line, all our Maine State Parks, 

standards by healthy lakes organizations, and most other States swimming standards.  The standards cannot be 

met and are not comparable to those permitted at other swimming facilities in Auburn.  The cost of water testing 

is therefore wasted.  The Board of Trustees directed the Superintendent to speak with the City Manager about the 

continued need for testing.  The District may wish to continue a weekly monitoring for comparison data purposes. 

Of interest to note personally… every time I’ve been to Lake Grove there have been more birds (ducks and geese) 

than people in the park. I did not observe any improvements to the Park which were part of the $62K allocation 

approved by the City Council last spring.  I could find no reference to park improvements in the spring and 

summer Parks & Recreations Work Plans. 

 

As always, thank you Mr. Mayor for providing me the opportunity to serve. 



Auburn Sewer District Report for Meeting Monday 2013.08.05 

Prepared:   Wednesday 2013.07.31  

TO:  Residents of Auburn and the Auburn City Council 

FROM:  Tizz E. H. Crowley- Auburn City Council Ward 1 

  Mayor LaBonte’s representative to ASD 

 

The Auburn Sewer District Board of Trustees met Tuesday, July 16, 2013 at 

the District office. 

 

The Sewerage District financial position remains strong.  The forecast is the district may exceed budget projections at year with 

by a favorable $20,000 surplus. 

 

Auburn residents may be interested to know the AWD and ASD pay the City of Auburn an average of $500 each time they need 

a permit to open a street surface to repair lines. 

 

ASD crews have been very busy systemically going through the City cleaning lines and basins.  The new vacuum truck is in use 

regularly.  This preventive maintenance will surely save a homeowner an expected problem in the future. 

 

Take a look around your property.  One way to lower sewer system costs is to be sure we get rain water out of our sewer lines 

where we must treat all water.  Have questions about just where your storm water is flowing- call the ASD for help.   

 

Several Auburn Sewerage District customers will be receiving notice of a new municipal sewer odor control strategy to be 

implemented in the next few months.  The District is working with commercial customers to reduce or eliminate odors 

connected to the sewer system that result from sanitary waste disposed into the system.  The District appreciates the 

community’s patience and cooperation as we work together. 

 

Tips of the Month:   

 In humid weather, monitor your ducts for condensation. Humidity can do more than make you feel hot and sweaty; it 

can also make your ductwork sweat which creates condensation. This can cause backups and damage to your ducts. 

 Most homes are equipped with garbage disposals, but don’t let the ease of grinding food down fool you.  Most modern 

disposals are not equipped to handle corn husks, celery, or other fibrous or stringy foods.  Also, make sure you don’t 

drain your cooking oils or fats down the drain, even with a garbage disposal.  Any type of food that expands with water 

(like instant mashed potatoes) watch out for, they will cause a big mess in your pipes. 

 Know where your water shut off valve is at all times in case of a major plumbing emergency.   

 The Lewiston-Auburn Water Pollution Control Authority invites the community to a celebration of 

the start of operations of Anaerobic Digestion and Power Generation Facilities on September 9, 

2013 at 10:30 am at the Wastewater Treatment Facility, 535 Lincoln Street, Lewiston, Maine 

This is the first municipally owned digester in Maine.  The generators will be running off waste 

by-products.  

 

   



Auburn Ward 1 Report for Meeting Monday 2013.08.05 

Prepared:   Wednesday 2013.07.31  

TO:  Residents of Auburn and the Auburn City Council 

FROM:  Tizz E. H. Crowley- Auburn City Councilor Ward 1 

 

“Thank you”-   to our Korean War veterans and others who have 
served our country and protected the freedoms we enjoy daily.  It 
was a pleasure to attend the 60th Anniversary program this past 
weekend.   
 
Thank you to the United New Auburn Association for inviting the community as a whole to participate in your 
meetings and events.  UNAA is a wonderful neighborhood association which sponsors many activities and 
programs to engage residents.  Wednesday evening, City Manager Deschene talked with the group about the 
impacts in the new city budget and answered many questions posed by those in attendance.  UNAA welcomes 
everyone regardless of where  one might live. 
 
Thank you to the Auburn Public Works for hosting a terrific open house.  Everyone in attendance enjoyed the 
visit and activities.  I wish I had space here to post photos and comments about each member of the crew I 
chatted with- such knowledge about equipment, the city, and how the work gets done… helps us understand 
the challenges faced and the pride in the work done on behalf of residents.  Can’t wait for the next 
opportunity! 
 
Dates to watch-  
 Wednesday August 7th Festival Plaza, Auburn The Veayo Twins.  Music starts at 10am  
Taking almost equally from the songwriters introduced to them by their mother (James Taylor, Carly Simon, 
Trisha Yearwood) and the bubblegum pop that all pre-teens can’t resist (Britney Spears, Aaron Carter, Kelly 
Clarkson) they have already crafted an album that combines pop, straight-ahead rock, gutty R&B and a little 
country with a message; An inspirational message targeting today's culture, including bullying and other 
experiences. 
 Wednesday August 7th

   Downtown Auburn New Urbanist Walking tour from 5:30-6:30pm lead by Alan 
Manoin, Economic Specialist for the City of Auburn.  We’ll meet in front of Gritty’s.  Downtown Auburn stands 
ready for a 21st century renaissance.   A renaissance built upon the ideal that Downtown Auburn is a distinctive 
destination place design for “time well spent”.  As a kick off to the city’s Downtown Auburn revitalization 
efforts, we invite you to this energizing walking excursion along the sidewalks of Auburn.  For more information 

and detail please contact Alan S. Manoian, Economic Development Specialist at Auburn City Hall at 
207.333.6601 X1214 or amanoian@auburnmaine.gov 
 Monday, August 12th- Join the 1970-1971 graduating classes from local high schools at Taber’s for an 
evening of friendship and laughter.  I’ll be there.  Not your year?  Check out the listing at Taber’s every year 
has a special night.   We gather at 5:30pm and are gone by 8:00pm. 
 Wednesday, August 14th is the next meeting of the Parks and Recreation Advisory Meeting.  Come to 
Hasty Memorial Gym for the 6:30pm start time.  Interested in community activities, City sponsored events, 
community resources- parks, cemeteries, ball fields- this is the citizen group that reviews and makes 
recommendations on these subjects.  Dog Park, Winter Fest, and many other topics have been submitted by 
residents for consideration and should be on the agenda.  Have you signed up for Recreation e-alerts?  The 
City sends recreation e-alerts, updating the community of recreation activities, if you sign up for such on the 
city website- it’s free!  

mailto:amanoian@auburnmaine.gov


 Wednesday August 21st is the last summer concert at Festival Plaza by the Auburn Community Band.  
Please join me as we enjoy the summer evening on the Riverfront.  Music starts at 7pm. 

  
Visiting Hours- Please note a change in the Thursday visiting hours.  

The Auburn Public Library closes earlier during the summer. The 
next visiting hours will be Tuesday, August 13th from 2-4pm and 

Thursday, August 22nd from 5-6pm. Of course, I’m always happy to 
meet with residents at their convenience.  I enjoy the invitations 

I’ve received to meet various neighborhood groups. 
 
Information provided to residents this period:  As a Councilor I get 
calls and questions from Auburn residents.  Helping to find the answers is one of my favorite parts of serving 
on the Council.  Since our last meeting we’ve looked at several things including: 
 
A resident, who lives by our airport, talked with me regarding the Auburn Police car that is frequently parked 
at the facility.  According to my conversation with the City Manager, he is aware of the vehicle.  Recently the 
Council directed that all municipal vehicles be parked/garaged in Auburn when not in use.  This action resulted 
from the practice that Auburn cars were being used to commute to and from work, as much as 50 miles RT a 
day.  The resident thought the vehicles would have been parked at the work site- city hall. I expected the 
same.    The City Manager explained parking at the city limits was acceptable to meet the standard. 
 
During the budget process, it was interesting to learn that less than one in four (1 in 4) City of Auburn 
employees actually live in Auburn.   It begs the question “why?” Budget challenges need community dialogue 
to find solutions.  Every Auburn resident should be able to answer “why should I own a house in Auburn?” 
 
I know it’s my hometown, but I really enjoy activities in our city.  They do cost money however.  I’ve attached 
the Events Cost report, prepared by the City Manager that outlines community events supported by the City 
of Auburn last year.  It is not a complete list.  Do you think these activities are good investment of your 
monies?  Are there other community programs you’d like to see and would want us to financially support? 
 
A long-range plan for biking and walking was presented at a public hearing on July 18th at an ARTC meeting.  
Unfortunately, there was little public notice about the session and Manley Road is not easily accessible by bike 
or walk.  If you’re interested in a copy of the report, please contact Joan Walton for  ATRC 
jwalton@avcog.org or 125 Manley Road, Auburn, ME 04210.  I would encourage ARTC to hold public meetings 
where attendees could walk or use public transportation. 
 
For over a year, I have been asking about reserved parking spaces in the parking garage.  Anyone visiting our 
downtown will notice the prime parking spaces are reserved for police and municipal vehicles.  The police 
have moved the cars for special events like voting and the July 4th celebrations.  The City Manager has assured 
me he will working on the issue.  Unfortunately we will likely have completed our summer community events 
at Festival Plaza before a recommendation is presented.  
 
Board and Committee Openings- Have you completed your application form?  Committee work can be fun.  
It’s a great way to meet others and to support your community.  I urge you to step forward and apply today. 
 
In closing,   thank you to all residents but especially those in ward 1, who have provided me with valuable 
advice and recommendations in the past few weeks.  Your interest and thoughtfulness are appreciated. 
  

mailto:jwalton@avcog.org


EVENT COSTS

911 Ceremony 1,765.00$    

AVCOG Med collection Night 3,185.50$    

BALLOON FESTIVAL 8,317.92$    

Banner Installation - Multiple Events 2,355.00$    

DEMPSEY CHALLENGE 8,889.72$    

ELHS Football Games - 954.00$        

FESTIVAL OF LIGHTS 2,748.20$    

Great Falls Carnival 1,012.00$    

HALLOWEEN - NEW AUBURN 1,333.00$    

HEARTWALK 3,080.00$    

HOLIDAY EVENT - NEW AUBURN 124.65$        

L/A 5 K 3,393.40$    

LA ARTS DU-ATHELON -$              

LIBERTY FESTIVAL 4,734.00$    

MAINE CYCLING BIKE RACE 420.00$        

MEMORIAL DAY PARADE 774.40$        

Municipal Beach Yard sale- 810.00$        

NATIONAL NIGHT OUT 5,439.86$    

New Auburn American Legion - 635.00$        

PD Bike Safety EVENT - 1,868.29$    

River CleanUP 212.00$        

Rollys Cruise Nite  360.80$        

Safe Voices Week EVENT - 893.00$        

SPECIAL OLYMPICS TORCH RUN 100.80$        

ST Doms walking EVENT 1,281.40$    

Strut Your Mutt EVENT - 550.00$        

Teen Traffic Safety EVENT  896.20$        

TRIPLE CROWN - 5K BRIDGE RUN 3,014.43$    

TRIPLE CROWN - EMILY'S RACE 2,733.00$    

TRIPLE CROWN - YMCA 5K RACE 2,689.20$    

VETERAN'S DAY PARADE -$              

Voting 4,244.00$    

TOTAL COSTS 68,814.77$  

NON-IN-KIND COSTS 15,558.20$  

TOTAL IN-KIND 53,256.57$  



MANAGER’S REPORT 
August 5, 2013 

 
Naming of Ball Fields 

I discussed with Mr. Colby Dill, American Legion Post #153, about the naming of the 
baseball field at Pettingill Park. As you know we are working to update the policy to 
include the new Public Services committee as part of the process.  I think we could 
adjust our policy to have a committee oversee the naming process and requests and 
then provide a recommendation for the Council to enact by resolve.  The action steps 
that need to occur are getting the committee structure in place with the Mayor, notify 
the Council of the naming delay and process, present an updated policy for a 
workshop in September, approve in September, and implement in October.  I will 
continue to update Mr. Dill on the status so we can move forward.  

School Budget Schedule 

Basic Information 

• State Law requires the School Committee to wait 10 days before 
submitting a new budget.  If 14 days for absentee is added this means the 
earliest a vote could occur is August 20th. 

• The School Committee must present a new budget within 45 days.  The 
Council has 30 days to call a vote, so the longest is 75 days.  This would be 
October 7th. 

• Commitment and tax due date.  Usually the 15th of September is the due 
date.  This means August 15th is the date we need to send out bills and 
with one week lead time that is August 8th.  Practically speaking the City 
could force a short process that has a validation vote on August 20th .  This 
would require extra effort to publicize. 

• Voting Machines are switching June 30th.  Which means the City will most 
likely have to hand count.  The State is controlling the new machines and 
we will be trained by August 14th, but the State doesn’t expect us to use 
until November. 

 

 

 

 

 



Potential Timeline 

 
1. Third Try School starts discussions with Committee on: July 24, 2013 (Wednesday) 
2. School Committee adopts revised budget on:  July 31, 2013 (Wednesday) 
3. City Council approves voting date and revised budget:  Aug 5, 2013 (Monday) 
4. Absentee begins:        Aug 6, 2013 (Tuesday) 
5. Validation vote:       Aug 20,2013 (Tuesday) 
6. Commitment:       Aug 21,2013(Wednesday) 
 

 
MEMA Distaster Grant 
 
On July 16th we received notice from the State that the City of Auburn has been 
awarded $114,036.04. The Federal share is $85,527.04 (75%) and we expect that 
payment soon. The State of Maine’s share is $17,105.41 (15%) and we are owed this 
amount. The City’s local share is $11,403.60 (10%) and we have paid this out during 
FY13. Total reimbursement is $102,632.44.  
I want to thank Derek Boulanger for overseeing this process and all the departments 
that coordinated their efforts through him in a well organized and planned process. 
 
 
Outlet Beach 
 
Auburn Water District is no longer going to perform water quality tests. The results are 
not improving and the AWD Trustees feel it is becoming burdensome for staff and 
expensive.  
 
 
LRAP (Local Road Assistance Program) 

LRAP is revenue we receive from MDOT to help offset the cost of maintaining minor 
collector roads and other infrastructure in Auburn. In FY14 we are going to receive 
$473,451. This is $17,406 more than we received in FY13. The form has been completed 
by Dan Goyette and returned to MDOT for processing.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



NOMINATION PAPERS ARE NOW AVAILABLE 
 

On Monday July 8th, candidates began taking out nomination papers for the upcoming 
2013 Municipal Election.  The deadline to return nomination papers is Thursday August 
22nd.  City Staff have prepared packets of helpful information for the candidates.  These 
packets are being distributed via email or hard copy to each candidate. 

These packets include: 

• Candidate Guide: Dos and Don’ts of campaign financing with regard to 
reporting requirements and post-election responsibilities, communication and 
disclosure statements 

• Getting Started Packets: Forms, Instructions and Filing Requirements 
• Section of the City Ordinance that covers nominations and elections  
• Ethics Ordinance 
• Council Code of Conduct 
• Quick Tips and Useful Links: Basic election tips and links to FOAA requirements 

and City Charter/Ordinances 
• Last year’s meeting schedule 
• List of all Boards and Committees 
• A link to the State’s web page on Forms and Guides for Municipal Candidates 

 
AUGUST 1, 2013 
 
Starting on August 1, 2013 there will be two changes related to Council Workshops and 
Meetings.    

1. The agenda and supporting materials will be projected on the Council Screen 
during Workshops and Meetings 

2. The City Manager will be sitting with Staff (next to the Assistant City Manager) 
during Workshops and Meetings  

 
City/School Department Employee running for City Council 

 We have looked at the issue and believe that in the context of the incompatibility of 
offices provisions of the Charter, school employees are considered city employees. This 
would preclude an individual from simultaneously serving as both a councilor and an 
employee of the school department.  
Under the Charter, the school department is a department of the City, and thus 
employment with the school department appears to be city employment. This is 
confirmed by the fact that the Section 4.8 incompatibility of offices provision that 
applies to school committee members (“No [school committee] member shall hold any 
other city office or employment during the term for which the member was elected”) is 
identical to the Section 2.9 provision that applies to councilors (“No councilor shall hold 
any other city office or employment during the term for which the member was 



elected”). In prohibiting school committee members from holding “any other city office 
or employment,” the Charter clearly deems membership on the school committee to 
be a “city office or employment.” If membership on the school committee is a “city 
office or employment,” then employment with the school department necessarily is a 
“city office or employment” as well.  
 
Boat Launch Facility 
 
Staff has been in communication with Brookfield regarding the sign that was placed. 
The sign is going to be removed.  As far as the flow rates we haven’t received 
Brookfield’s protocols. The current flow rate that we are using is 10,000 CF. Once we get 
something from Brookfield we can change it to 6,500 but only with justification. We look 
forward to working with Brookfield to keep our citizens safe while using the river for 
recreation.  

 



CITY OF AUBURN 

 

PROCLAMATION 
 

TO CONGRATULATE KEN BLAIS FOR BEING NAMED THE 2013 CITY OF 

AUBURN’S SPIRIT OF AMERICA’S TRIBUTE RECIPIENT  

 
WHEREAS, Ken Blais has been a prominent figure in Auburn for many years; and 

 

WHEREAS, Ken has been instrumental in the revitalization efforts of New Auburn and is always willing 

to generously support community events and projects such as the holiday lighting, Easter Egg Hunt, 

Dinny Sullivan Day, New Auburn Association monthly meetings and many others; and 

 

WHEREAS, He has owned and operated Rolly’s Diner for numerous years and recently was awarded the 

first ever City of Auburn Community Service award at the recent LAEGC Award banquet; and 

 

WHEREAS, Ken has given back in multiple ways that go above and beyond and truly show his 

compassion and dedication to his community; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Auburn City Council, on behalf of the Citizen of Auburn, hereby expresses its 

strong appreciation for Ken Blais by naming him as the City of Auburn’s 2013 Spirit of America Tribute 

recipient.  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hand and caused the Seal of the City of Auburn to 

be imprinted this First day of July, Two Thousand Thirteen. 

________________________ 
Mayor Jonathan P. LaBonté 

________________________ 
Councilor Tizz E.H. Crowley 

________________________ 
Councilor Robert Hayes 

________________________ 
Councilor Mary LaFontaine 

________________________ 
Councilor David Young 

________________________ 
Councilor Leroy Walker 

________________________ 
Councilor Joshua Shea 

________________________ 
Councilor Belinda Gerry 



 



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Amendment to the Mass Gathering Ordinance  

 

Information: Under our current Mass Gathering ordinance it prohibits alcohol in the Mass Gathering area. 
Sec. 24-217. Alcoholic Beverages 

The sale or consumption of alcoholic beverages of any kind is prohibited within the mass gathering area during any 

event. The operator will exercise due diligence and exert his/her best efforts to prevent the consumption of alcoholic 

beverages within the mass gathering area and to prevent patrons from using, consuming, bringing in, or otherwise 

obtaining alcoholic beverages within the mass gathering areas. The operator shall post signs to that effect and, when 

possible, have this prohibition printed on any advertising or tickets to the mass gathering.  

We are proposing changing the ordinance to allow the sale and consumption of alcoholic beverages under certain 

conditions (see attached). 

 

Financial: N/A 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Consider passage of second and final reading. 

 

Previous Meetings and History: Discussed at the 6/3/2013 Council Workshop and was postponed on the 

6/3/2013 agenda, and postponed again on 6/17/2013 and brought forward at the 7/15/2013 meeting for passage 

of the first reading. 

 

 

Attachments:  

Allowed alcohol use in parks – Various Towns and Cities 

Ordinance 07-06032013 with proposed changes 

Council meeting Date:  August 5, 2013 Ordinance 07-06032013 

Author:   Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 



ALCOHOL IN PARKS – RESPONSES MAY/JUNE 2013 
 
 
Mount Desert 
 
Mount Desert does not. We recently had to deny a wine tasting event at our marina green area. 
 
 
Lewiston 
 
City of Lewiston permits alcohol consumption in one park which hosts the larger city events 
(Dempsey Challenge, etc.). All events require insurance coverage (regardless if they have alcohol or 
not). All permitting and security (on-site security must be approved by the city) is their responsibility. 
The no-alcohol policy for other parks may be waived by a vote of the city council but that has not 
occurred to date.     
 
 
Winterport 
 
I think you will find many towns and cities allow this for these types of gatherings.  Bangors Folk 
Festival has a beer and wine tent.  Here in Winterport we ran a music Festival for 7 years and had a 
beer and wine area also.  As long as you have a caterer that has an off premise license (I know Sea 
Dog does as they did our Festival for 5 years) and follow all the State and Insurance protocol you 
should be fine.  We never had any problems doing this.         
 
 
Scarborough 
 
We officially prohibit alcohol in public spaces, and have never (at least not in modern history) been 
asked to allow it for a special occasion.  However, in other towns that I have worked, we have allowed 
it with restrictions.   
 
 
Gardner 
 
We allow, with Council approval of a special event permit, for one time events like our Oktoberfest. 
Our PD is involved in where it can be located, what safety precautions need to take place to prevent 
underage drinking, etc. Group who sets it up needs to insure it and take all the risk.  Other than that, 
no alcohol allowed.    
 
 
Stockton Springs 
  
I would be interested in responses that you get to this.  We do not allow it as per a former 1st Select 
Woman whose husband was in recovery.  I'm not sure if it is state law, MMA Risk management 
required, or just "Sara's law".  We had an event last summer in our Community Room at Town Hall.  
They had a "beer tent" just over the property line at the Community Library and that apparently was 
legal.    
 
 
 
 



Wiscasset 
 
I know in other communities I have served that alcohol could be served on town grounds as long as 
we licensed and catered properly.    
 
 
Bridgton 
 
We allow alcohol only at the old town hall during rentals and require the sponsor/vendor to have the 
necessary local license as well as provide the town with their full insurance policy that names the 
town as additionally insured and that it is properly checked off on that form.  We have had no 
problems to date.        
 
 
Ellsworth 
 
Ellsworth is going through this also.  We have never allowed alcohol consumption on City property 
but this year we are having our 250th birthday and a group of citizens are planning a week-long 
celebration.  One aspect of this celebration is a dinner and dance under a tent in our community 
park.   
 
Ellsworth does not have an ordinance that disallows drinking, we have always just followed state law 
and when someone asked to serve alcohol on public property, the Council refused to sign the off-site 
premise alcohol form.  They are however, planning on allowing alcohol for this event.       
 
 
St. Agatha 
 
We allow it on a case by case basis.  It usually only comes up during our SummerFest and that is a 
town sponsored event.  We do require a BYOB permit or liquor license depending on what the set up 
is.  We do not have an ordinance prohibiting the consumption.      
  
 
Madison 
 
The Madison BOS recently voted to allow  the American Legion to have a beer tent to go along with a 
chili cook-off event at the Town’s annual Madison / Anson Day’s. anticipated it will last 1.5 to 2 hours 
and would be controlled by the Legion. Hope this helps.       
 
 
Thomaston 
 
Thomaston allows it through a request to the Board of selectpersons. The town requires the applicant 
to provide Insurance through M.M.A. TULIP program and comply with State Liquor Laws.    
 
 
South Berwick 
 
In South Berwick we do not have an ordinance prohibiting alcohol consumption on Town property.  
We have authorized events providing the organizers arrange for a caterer who obtains an offsite 
catering license for alcohol.   We have not done a “beer garden” but we have hosted the Historical 
Society at Town Hall and their caterer has served beer and wine.  The Senior Citizens Annual New 



Year’s Eve party uses the same model at our Community Center.  Neither of these would rise to the 
level of a public festival, but we have not experienced any difficulties. 
 
In a past life, I attended a concert or two with beer gardens, one at the OOB Ballpark.  My only 
thought is they become very crowded, but the upside is no one is walking around with alcohol.       
 
 
Brownville 
 
Although we do not allow it here on Town Property, formally for events it remains open.  The "Tulip 
Program" is available online.  This allows for the sponsor of the event to take out a blanket insurance 
policy to cover the event.     
 
 
Augusta 
 
On occasion we allow it in parks for festivals provided there's a licensed vendor with cert. of 
insurance.    
 
 
Kennebunk 
 
Provided “Alcohol Policy – Municipal Facility” and “Town Streets” 
 
 
Cape Elizabeth 
 
Provided “Group Use Policy”, which addressed in part – alcohol.  



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  Joshua Shea, At Large 

David Young, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan LaBonte, Mayor 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

           

ORDINANCE  07-06032013 

 

ORDERED, that the Code of Ordinances be and hereby is amended as follows: 

 
Sec. 24-217. Alcoholic Beverages 

The sale or consumption of alcoholic beverages of any kind is prohibited within the mass gathering area during 

any event unless the operator obtains all necessary permits from the City . The operator will exercise due 

diligence and exert his/her best efforts to prevent the consumption of alcoholic beverages within the mass 

gathering area and to prevent patrons from using, consuming, bringing in, or otherwise obtaining alcoholic 

beverages within the mass gathering areas.  

If the Operator intends to sell or permit the sale of alcoholic beverages within the mass gathering area during a 

mass gathering, the Operator shall restrict the time and location of such sale so that alcoholic beverages are sold 

only during the particular event and so that public safety and order will not be impaired. The Operator shall 

comply fully with the laws of the State of Maine regulating the sale and consumption of alcoholic beverages, as 

well as with the City’s Special Amusement Ordinance. Alcoholic beverages may be sold and consumed only 

within a restricted area of the Facility, which does not include the parking lot. The Operator shall identify, in its 

Permit Application, the specific restricted areas where it proposes to sell alcoholic beverages, and the means by 

which it anticipates to limit the consumption of alcohol to such restricted portions of the mass gathering area. 

Additionally, the Operator shall exercise all due diligence, work with the Auburn Police Department on strict 

enforcement and exert its best efforts to control, limit and prevent the unauthorized consumption of alcoholic 

beverages on any part of the mass gathering area outside of the restricted areas, and to prevent patrons of the 

mass gathering area from using, consuming, bringing in, or otherwise obtaining alcoholic beverages in any 

manner not authorized by this Ordinance. Nothing in this Ordinance shall preclude the Operator from 

implementing more restrictive rules for the sale and consumption of alcoholic beverages. 

No one under the age of 21 years of age will be allowed in this area.  

The operator shall post signs to that effect and, when possible, have this prohibition printed on any advertising 

or tickets to the mass gathering.  

Any person, partnership, corporation or other legal entity including the Operator, violating this Section shall be 

punished by a civil penalty of at least One Hundred ($100.00) Dollars but not more than Five Hundred 

($500.00) Dollars. The failure to comply with conditions imposed upon the issuance of a mass gathering permit 

shall be a violation of this Section. Each violation shall be considered a separate offense, and each day a 

violation is allowed to exist shall be considered a separate offense. The civil penalty provided for in this Section 

shall be in addition to any other penalty or damages provisions provided within this Section, and shall be in 

addition to all other remedies to the City of Auburn at law and in equity. The provisions of this Section shall be 

enforced by the City Manager or such other municipal official or employee as the City Manager shall designate 

in writing. The City shall also be entitled to its reasonable attorney fees and costs for successfully prosecuting a 

violation of this Section.  



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Setting the date, location, and time to open the polling place for the School Budget Validation 

Referendum Election. 

 

Information: The School Budget Validation is going before Auburn voters for a third vote. If Council approves 

the school budget as presented tonight, we are recommending an election date of August 20, 2013, all voting to 

be done at Auburn Hall, and polls will open at 7:00 A.M. If approved, there will be one question on the ballot 

which will read; 

 

“Do you favor approving the City of Auburn school budget for the upcoming school year as adopted by the City 

Council on August 5, 2013?” 

 

  

Financial: Budget 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Recommend setting the date for August 20, 2013 and the location to be 

Auburn Hall for all voting, and polls to open at 7:00 A.M. 

 

Previous Meetings and History: The School Budget Validation went out to the Auburn Voters on June 11, 

2013 and it failed. It went back to the voters again on July 23, 2013 and failed again, which means it will go 

back to the voters on a date set by Council once the budget is approved by Council.  

 

 

Attachments: Order 61-08052013 

 

Council Meeting Date:  August 5, 2013 Order  61-08052013 

Author:   Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  Joshua Shea, At Large 

David Young, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 61-08052013 

 

 
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby sets the date of the School Budget Validation Referendum for August 

20, 2013, with voting for all Wards to be consolidated to one polling place, Auburn Hall, and polls will open at 

7:00 A.M. 

 



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan   Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Order establishing the property tax payment due dates and to establish the property tax 

delinquency and overpayment interest rates for Fiscal Year 2013-2014. 
 

 

Information:  

Pursuant to 36 M.S.R.A. § 505, this order establishes the real estate property tax and personal property 

tax due dates of the Fiscal Year 2012-2013/ 

 Real Estate property tax will be due in two equal installments on September 15, 2012 and March 15, 

2013. Personal property tax will be due, in its entirety, September 15, 2012. 

 Also, pursuant to 36 M.S.R.A. § 505, this order confirms the interest rate for over payment and 

delinquent taxes as determined by the Treasurer State of Maine. The maximum rate set by the State Treasurer is 

determined by prime rate as published by the Wall Street Journal on the first business day of the calendar year, 

rounded up to the next whole percent plus 3 percentage points. 

 

Financial: n/a 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Adoption of Order 

 

Previous Meetings and History:  

 

Attachments:  

 Order 62-08052013 

Council Meeting Date:  August 5, 2013 Order  62-08052013 

Author:   Jill M. Eastman, Finance Director 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  Joshua Shea, At Large 

David Young, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan LaBonte, Mayor 

 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 62-08052013 

 
ORDERED, that fifty percent (50%) of all real estate taxes assessed as in the annual commitment, 

committed to the Tax Collector, shall be due proportionately from each tax payer on September 25, 2013 and 

the remaining fifty percent (50%) shall be due on March 15, 2014. 

 

Except as may be provided by resolve regarding payments in accordance with an installment payment 

plan, any real estate taxes remaining uncollected on September 26, 2013 and March 16, 2014 respectively shall 

bear interest at a rate of 7% per annum from and after such dates. 

 

 Personal property taxes shall be due and payable on or before September 25, 2013. Any personal 

property taxes remaining unpaid on September 26, 2013 shall bear an interest rate of 7% per annum from and 

after such date. Interest on all delinquent taxes shall be computed on a daily basis and shall be collected by the 

Tax Collector. The Tax Collector is authorized to accept tax prepayments. 

 



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Public Services Department 

 

Information: Pursuant to the City Charter Section 7.1 paragraph A, be it here by established a Public Services 

Department including Public Works, Parks and Recreation, and Engineering with no budget impact to the 

current fiscal year FY13/14.  Be it also provided that City Staff are to work with the Mayor for the 

implementation of committee restructuring to be reviewed by the City Council.   

 

 

Financial: none 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Recommend passage 

 

Previous Meetings and History: On July 15
th

, 2013 the City Council had a work shop to discuss the 

restructuring of the Public Works, Parks and Recreation, and Engineering Departments into a Public Services 

Department. 

 

 

Attachments:  

 Public Services Organizational Chart 

 Order 63-08052013 

 

Council Meeting Date:  August 5, 2013 Order  63-08052013 

Author:   Denis D’Auteuil 



Director Public Services

Denis D 

Director Public Services

Denis D 

 City Engineer

Dan Goyette

Deputy Director 

Public Services

Nick Labbe 

Assistant Engineer

 Tony Beaulieu

Asst. City Engineer

 Gary Johnson

Fleet MGR

Ted Corbett 

Operations MGR

 Gary Wadsworth

Office MGR PW

Geri Crane 

Parks Supervisor

Rick Hersom 

Arborist

Highway 

Supervisor

 (vacant)John 

Wing

Highway 

Supervisor

 Kevin Doyle

Highway 

Supervisor

Adam Stevens 

2nd Shift Lead 

Mechanic (Foster)

 

1st Shift Mechanic 

(Rick C)

 

1st Shift Lead 

Mechanic (Tim)

 

1st Shift Mechanic

 (Scott S)

Parts Room 

Technician (Mark J)

 

Welder Fabricator 

(Jeff C)

 

2nd Shift Mechanic 

(Jeremy)

 

2nd Shift Mechanic

 (Vacant)

PW Admin

 Angela Dow

Parks & recreation

Admin

Jan

Operator 1

Bill Lachance 

Operator 1

Dave Lane 

Operator 2

 Paul Allen

Operator 

Nate Meserve 

Operator

Pimble Smith 

Operator

Walter Reynolds 

Operator

Andy Anketell 

Operator

 Dillon Antone

Operator

 Kennedy

Operator

 (vacant)

Operator 1

 Don Lawlor

Operator 1

 Bil Lamontagne

Operator 2

 Tony Castongne

Operator 2

 Tim Hahn

Operator

Frank Poussard 

Operator

 Kyle Golob

Operator

 Rick Therrien

Operator

 Brian Lothrop

Operator

(vacant)

Operator

(vacant) 

Building Maint Tech

Carpenter 

Brian Levesque

Building Maint Tech

Traffic 

Al Spencer

Building Maint

 Janitorial

Mike Reed

Inventory Tech

(vacant)

Operator Traffic

 Chris Cameron

Operator 2

Dave Knox

 

Operator 2

 Brett Larson

Operator 

Mark Martin

Operator Recycling

 Beau Boisvert

Operator 2 Vactor

 Alan Kolln

Operator 2 

Sweeping/Mowing

Craig Dustin

Operator 2 

Sweeping/Mowing

Kahn Ratsavong

Operator 

Sweeping/Mowing

D J Sjostrom

Operator

Vactor

Matt Seamon

Parks Maintenance

Ben Libby 

Parks Maintenance

Tony Prosper 

2nd Shift Facilities 

Supervisor 

(Vacant)

 (former welder 2)

Operator 2

 2nd shift

Alan Gray

Building Maint Tech

 2nd shift

Ed Nemethy

Fleet Admin

Tracy Pinkham 

Building 

Maintenance Tech.

Paul Charest

Recreation 

Specialist

Joe toner

Recreation 

Program Leader

Jeremy  Gatcomb

Information Tech

Caitlin

Highway 

Supervisor

 Bill Grealish

Part Time Staff 

Volunteers

 

Arborist/O1

Mike Cohen 

Parks Maintenance

 Si Wilkinson

Operator

Assistant Arborist

James Richardson

Asst. Parks 

Supervisor

Mike Bolduc

Parks Maintenance

Alex Merchant

Recreation 

Supervisor

Ravi Sharma



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  Joshua Shea, At Large 

David Young, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan LaBonte, Mayor 

 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 63-08052013 

 
ORDERED, that pursuant to the City Charter Section 7.1 paragraph A, that it be hereby established a Public 

Services Department including Public Works, Parks and Recreation, and Engineering with no budget impact to 

the current fiscal year FY13/14.  Be it also provided that City Staff are to work with the Mayor for the 

implementation of committee restructuring to be reviewed by the City Council.  See attached organizational 

chart. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
          



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject:  Community Development Program Amendment 

 

Information:  Re-allocation of Community Development Block Grant funds and HOME Investment 

Partnerships Program funds (see attached memo) 

 

 

Financial: Community Development budget $119,834.85 

                 HOME Investment Partnerships Programm budget $115,000 

 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting:   Discussion and direction for budget changes, and set public hearing date. 

It is recommended that this item be postponed until the meeting of August 19, 2013 

 

Previous Meetings and History:   

 The City Council adopted the City budget in July with the request that $50,000 be taken from the Community 

Development budget to pay for code enforcement.   

 

 

 Attachments:  

 Memo to City Manager 

 Community Development Budget 

 CDBG Targeted Code Enforcement Program 

 Code Requests in CDBG Target Areas Map 

 CDBG Target Areas Maps 

 Vacant Properties in CDBG Target Areas Map 

 Draft Order 64-08052013 

Council Meeting Date:  August 5, 2013 Order  64-08052013 

Author:   Reine Mynahan, Community Development Director 













Targeted Code Enforcement 

 

Program Description: 

 

The Targeted Code Enforcement Program provides a focused approach to code 

enforcement in the Auburn Downtown/Union Street/New Auburn neighborhoods (census 

tracts 101, 103, and 105).  The area proposed for Targeted Code Enforcement has 

been further narrowed to areas that are also identified as blighted in the 2010 Blight 

Study Update.  (Please see attached Auburn CDBG Target Area Map for exact 

boundaries).   The 2000 Census data shows that between 50-80% of the population in 

these tracts is living below low mod income levels depending on which census tract.  

After gathering and analyzing data on vacant/abandoned buildings and past code 

enforcement activity it is now necessary to create an enforcement program that is more 

targeted.  This will include expansions of housing and vacant building code enforcement 

efforts, funded by CDBG, that we believe is necessary to improve the overall condition of 

the housing stock in these areas.  This will not be purely a “stick” approach to code 

compliance and improving neighborhood conditions but will be an enhanced partnership 

between CDBG and code enforcement that will also target financial resources including 

Spot, Residential and Homeowner Rehab Programs.     

 

We propose utilizing our full time Code Compliance Officer for 75% of their time 

working on improving neighborhoods in the target area and one Code Compliance 

Assistant who is also and experienced CDBG Rehab Coordinator for 2 days per week.  A 

map of the geographical boundaries of this program is included and labeled as CDBG 

target area.  

 

 

Justification for this Program approach: 

 

Auburn is a City of 67 square miles with approximately 6 square miles of water and 61 

square miles of land.  CDBG target areas described above total approximately 1 square 

mile in area and 50-80% of residents of those areas are at or below low mod income 

levels.  Despite being 1/67
th

 of the City’s land area, 64% of documented code 

enforcement efforts were within CDBG target areas in 2012 (see attached map titled 

Code Requests in CDBG Target Areas).   

 

The City of Auburn maintains a list of known vacant structures as potential nuisances and 

for being at high risk for criminal activity.  There are slightly over 7000 residential 

properties including single-family homes, multi-family homes, mobile homes and 

condominiums within the City and we are aware that slightly over 100 or 1.5% of them 

are vacant and/or abandoned.  City-wide, 1.5% may not be that alarming, but it should be 

noted that 40% of the known vacant or abandoned structures are concentrated with the 

1/67
th

 of the City’s land area that is our target area (see attached map titled Vacant 

Buildings in CDBG Target Areas).  The urgency of this program was heightened after 

three vacant structure fires spread to neighboring structures leaving more 170 people 

homeless in neighboring Lewiston on April 29th, May 3rd and May 6
th

 2013.  The 



tragedy did increase awareness, community involvement and cooperation among code 

enforcement and other public safety agencies.   

 

 

Specific Program Design: 

Our updated enforcement program will be aimed at focusing resources on the follow-up 

enforcement that comes with each new violation, vacant building or concern identified 

during inspections in the CDBG target areas.  A designated Code Compliance Officer 

(CCO) will facilitate communication between the various departments of the City 

regarding problem properties and maintain a list of known vacant or abandoned 

structures.  These lines of communication will help to coordinate initial inspections and 

will increase follow-up enforcement efforts.  The Planning and Permitting Department 

has already begun fostering informal relationships between the Fire and Police 

Departments, Volunteers in Police Service (VIPS) and other volunteer groups to aid in 

monitoring vacant and abandoned properties.  This group of stakeholders will be referred 

to as the Target Area Partners (TAP).  The recent efforts, improved communication and 

increased monitoring were born out of necessity.  Three human caused fires earlier this 

year in Lewiston, just across the Androscoggin River, heightened community 

involvement and the sense of urgency regarding high concentrations of vacant buildings.  

Although the cooperative efforts have increased the number of inspections and eyes on 

the street, it has also increased volume and demand for follow-up enforcement and 

created a backlog of complaints.   The targeted program and the additional staff resources 

that it will bring will enable us to continue to take advantage of interdepartmental and 

volunteer monitoring, to keep up on required follow-up actions and to become more 

proactive in target neighborhoods.   

 

TAP will continue communication and respond to changing demands.  We will explore 

formalizing the group if benefits of doing so are identified, however, that may involve 

negotiations with 3-4 individual union groups and the current informal arrangements are 

meeting the immediate needs of the community.  We do not want to risk current 

cooperation by attempting to formalize arrangements.  Staff will also review data to 

monitor what is going on in these neighborhoods and change tactics as required to be as 

effective as possible.  This will be shared with the Auburn Police Department who 

maintains similar data for their calls for service.  In addition to targeting specific problem 

properties, the designated CCO will also walk the streets of neighborhoods with high 

concentrations of vacant structures, issue Notice of Violations and initiate condemnation 

proceedings as needed.   

 

The beginning phase of this endeavor involves the CCO identifying top priority street 

segments based on code request and vacant structure concentrations and then going 

through those areas and working with owners to address violations.  The ongoing 

monitoring effort will continue to be assisted by volunteers and staff from other 

departments including VIPS, firemen and  police officers passing along vacant building 

information and by making some monitoring of those structures part of their regular work 

in. 

 



Other efforts of the CCO will be spent on coordination with other departments and the 

corresponding paperwork for this.  Code issues that will be reviewed  includes structural 

issues specific to building code, as well as health and sanitary code issues like trash and 

debris, unsecured vacant buildings, abandoned cars, and zoning violations such as 

commercial use of a residential property and illegally created apartment units or boarding 

rooms.  Paper work entails entering information into the City of Auburn’s code 

enforcement software “Energov”, documenting inspections, time keeping and written 

correspondence with property owners and on occasion the City Attorney. 

  

As this work continues, specific properties with chronic problems will be targeted for 

further scrutiny and enforcement efforts.  In addition, properties that are known to be 

vacant or are in foreclosure and chronically unsecured will be prioritized.  As this 

information is gathered and mapped we can determine where to invest the most effort to 

enforce community standards.  

 

Part of this project also includes efforts that will ensure that there is efficient and 

adequate follow up and strategic planning developed around the results of the targeted 

code enforcement.  This includes the following efforts: 

 

 Ensuring data is inputted on a weekly basis. 

 Developing reports based on the information that are coordinated with other 

efforts in the City of Auburn, including the collection of data on continuing 

foreclosed properties, abandoned properties, tax delinquent properties and illegal 

activity from the Police department and Fire department.   

 Mapping of the data to illustrate what is happening as the code enforcement 

activities continue. 

 Ensuring information will be shared between the various departments of the City 

in an effort to identify which properties continue to be problems despite code 

enforcement activities and their accompanying fines.   

 Ensuring that residents who report code concerns in the area have their issues 

addressed. 

 

 

Community Involvement: 

 

A majority of the code requests from target areas are complaint driven and from members 

of the community.   The targeted approach and additional staff support will first allow for 

staff to catch up with existing community demand for the service and then to be more 

proactive in priority areas to hopefully get ahead of demand and reduce overall calls for 

service due to increased code compliance.  Code compliance officers will make 

additional effort to be more visible in target areas and to communicate with residents that 

they encounter on the streets.  We will also use our “ParticipateAuburn” email list, the 

City website and a press release to make people aware of the targeted efforts and the 

statistics that show the need for this targeted approach.   

 

 



Feasibility: 

 

This project is feasible for the following reasons: 

 

 There is already a full time Code Compliance Officer in the Planning and 

Permitting Department.  This is adding to an existing function, targeting efforts, 

and improving communication among partners, not creating a new one. 

 The Code Compliance Officers are trained in how to recognize building code 

violations and health and safety issues and maintain State Certifications as Code 

Enforcement Officers to do so.  Supervisors will be able to train new staff easily 

and our Code Compliance Assistant will work to become certified in the coming 

year. 

 The Department has moved to a computerized data base system.  This has 

improved our ability to track citations, map them with GIS and follow up on them 

appropriately.  The graphic representation has also allowed us to better explain 

efforts and challenges to the community.   

 Staff in the Department of Planning and Development has already started 

coordinating efforts among several volunteer groups and enforcement 

departments including VIPS, firemen and police officers.  These groups have 

begun passing along vacant building information and are providing monitoring of 

those structures as part of their work.   

 Neighborhood meeting scheduled for this fall can include outreach and 

community input on the targeted program.   

 

 

Impact includes 

 Decrease the incidents of health and safety issues that impact quality of life for 

residents and visibly affect the look of the neighborhood in a negative way.   

 Bring financial resources to property owners that wish to comply but lack 

resources.  Code compliance too often utilizes a “stick” approach and this 

program will bring a “carrot” approach.   

 Prioritize code enforcement at vacant and/or abandoned structures and in 

neighborhoods with a high concentration of those structures.    

 Encourage and even force owners to fix serious building and housing code issues.  

This includes fixing potential hazards like retaining walls, steps, and foundations 

and demolishing structures that cannot be rehabilitated.  

 Identifying serious Problem Properties that have owners who are resistance to 

code enforcement and target them for court action and condemnation. 

 

 

 

 

 



Code Requests in CDBG Target Areas

60 Court Street
Auburn, Maine 04120

PHONE: (207) 333-6600
FAX: (207) 333-6623

www.auburnmaine.gov

City of Auburn

0 0.5 1 Miles

DISCLAIMER
While every effort has been made
to ensure that these data are
accurate and reliable, the City of
Auburn cannot accept any
responsibility for any errors, omissions,
or positional accuracy, and therefore,
there are no warranties which
accompany this product. Users of the
information displayed on this map are
strongly cautioned to verify all
information before making any
decisions.

Code Requests

CDBG Target Areas
Downtown
Manley Road
New Auburn
Sandy Beach
Union Street



 



Vacant Buildings in CDBG Target Areas

60 Court Street
Auburn, Maine 04120

PHONE: (207) 333-6600
FAX: (207) 333-6623

www.auburnmaine.gov

City of Auburn

0 0.5 1 Miles

DISCLAIMER
While every effort has been made
to ensure that these data are
accurate and reliable, the City of
Auburn cannot accept any
responsibility for any errors, omissions,
or positional accuracy, and therefore,
there are no warranties which
accompany this product. Users of the
information displayed on this map are
strongly cautioned to verify all
information before making any
decisions.

Parcels with Vacant Buildings

CDBG Target Areas
Downtown
Manley Road
New Auburn
Sandy Beach
Union Street



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  Joshua Shea, At Large 

David Young, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan LaBonte, Mayor 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

      ORDER 64-08052013 

 

 
 

ORDERED that the Auburn City Council hereby adopts the Community Development Program Amendment to 

the 2013 Annual Action Plan as recommended by Community Development staff. 

 

 



City Council 

Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

 

  Council Meeting Date: August 5, 2013   

 

   

 

Subject: Executive Session  

 

Information: Discussion on a poverty abatement, pursuant to 36 M.R.S.A. §842(2) with possible action to follow.  

 

 

 

 



City of Auburn, Maine 
“Maine’s City of Opportunity” 

___________________________      ______ 
Health & Social Services 

 

 

 

 

Memorandum 

 
TO: CLINT DESCHENE, CITY MANAGER 

FROM: DOROTHY MEAGHER, DIRECTOR SOCAL SERVICES 

SUBJECT: AUBURN POVERTY / INFIRMITY TAX ABATEMENT PROCEDURE 

DATE: AUGUST 1, 2013 

 
A request for a poverty abatement in accordance to Maine Law, title 36 MRSA § 841 (2) permits the 

municipal officers, on their own knowledge or on written application to make such abatements as they 
believe reasonable on the real or personal taxes of persons who, by reason of infirmity or poverty, are 
in their judgment unable to contribute to the public charge.   

The purpose of 36 MRSA § 841 (2) is “to prevent towns from forcing the sale of property in order to collect 
taxes from those otherwise unable to pay.” The municipality must look at the applicant’s realistic 
financial capacity to pay his or her taxes.   

Municipal officers must keep all application, information submitted in support of the application, files and 
communication relating to an application for abatement and the determination on the application for 
abatement are confidential.  Hearing and proceedings held pursuant to this subsection must be in 
executive session.   

To obtain poverty abatement an applicant has the burden of proving that by reason of poverty or infirmity, 
the applicant is unable to contribute to the public charges.  

Decision Making Process; Section 841(2) requires that hearings and proceedings held pursuant to 841(2) 
shall be in executive session.  The council should make a motion at a public meeting to enter into 
executive session to deliberate over an abatement pursuant to 36 MRSA § 841 (2).  The motion 
must be approved and must be recorded.  Any deliberation regarding the application should occur in 
executive session.  Council cannot make a decision in executive session; the purpose of the 
executive session is for deliberation only.  After coming out of the executive session, the council should 
make a motion such as “ I move to grant an abatement of the amount $__________ pursuant to 
Title 36 MRSA §841(2).  The municipal officers’ ultimate decision is a matter of public record.  
Recipient’s name address or any information on the application cannot be disclosed.   

Regardless of the outcome, a written decision to grant the abatement, deny the abatement or partially grant 
the abatement within 30 days of the date of the application. The written decision must include the 
specific reason for the decision and must inform the applicant of his or her appeal rights and the 
procedure for a request to appeal.    

The Legislature in 2005 amended 36 MRSA § 841 (2) to provide that the municipal officers may only grant 
abatements of taxes “on the primary residence of” infirm or impoverished applicants.   

 
 













Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  Joshua Shea, At Large 

David Young, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 65-08052013 

 

 
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby grants/denies an abatement of the amount of $__________ pursuant 

to Title 36 M.R.S.A. §841 (2). 

 

 


	0  Agenda 08-05-2013
	1  Workshop Info Sheet School Budget
	1a  Budget info for Wed
	1b  TIMELINE FOR SCHOOL BUDGET APPROVAL
	1c  From Dan Stockford
	1d  Notice of Amounts 2013-14 Bdgt Validation Ref-#3
	1e  Order 60-08052013 School Bgt #3
	2  Workshop Info Sheet Public Services Committee
	2a  Cover memo on committees
	2b  Public Services Committees
	3  Workshop Info Sheet Bond Order
	3a  Bond attachment final cip fy 13-14
	FY 14 Funding

	3b  Bond attachment Order 35-05132013 CIP FY 2013-2014
	3c  bond attachment - notice of public hearing (W3790491)
	3d  Minutes 06-03-2013
	3e  Draft Order Bonds
	4  Workshop Info Sheet   S ynthetic Drug Ordinance
	4a  Ordinance Synthetic Drugs
	5  Workshop Info Sheet Legends Sports Bar and Grill
	5a  Legends State Liquor License
	5b  Legends Special Amusement
	5c  Legends FSE Class I
	5d  Legends - pool tables
	5e  Legends Criminal Background
	6  Agenda Info Sheet MMA VOTES 08052013
	6a  MMA VOTE
	6b  Order 59-08052013 MMA VOTE
	7  7-1-2013 Minutes
	8  7-15-2013 Minutes
	9  Auburn Water District Report for Meeting Monday 2013 08 05
	9a  Auburn Sewer District Report for Meeting Monday 2013 08 05
	10  Auburn City Council Ward 1 Report 2013 08 05
	10a  Copy of Revised Event Cost Report - 2012  ALL DEPARTMENTS   7-12-13
	11  Managers Report 08 05 13
	MANAGER’S REPORT
	August 5, 2013
	Naming of Ball Fields
	MEMA Distaster Grant
	On July 16th we received notice from the State that the City of Auburn has been awarded $114,036.04. The Federal share is $85,527.04 (75%) and we expect that payment soon. The State of Maine’s share is $17,105.41 (15%) and we are owed this amount. The...
	I want to thank Derek Boulanger for overseeing this process and all the departments that coordinated their efforts through him in a well organized and planned process.
	Outlet Beach
	Auburn Water District is no longer going to perform water quality tests. The results are not improving and the AWD Trustees feel it is becoming burdensome for staff and expensive.
	LRAP (Local Road Assistance Program)
	LRAP is revenue we receive from MDOT to help offset the cost of maintaining minor collector roads and other infrastructure in Auburn. In FY14 we are going to receive $473,451. This is $17,406 more than we received in FY13. The form has been completed ...
	NOMINATION PAPERS ARE NOW AVAILABLE
	Starting on August 1, 2013 there will be two changes related to Council Workshops and Meetings.

	12  Ken Blais Proclamation
	13  Agenda Info Sheet Alcoholic Beverages ordinance
	13a  Alcohol in Parks Tally
	13b  Ordinance 07-06032013 Alcoholic Beverages at Mass Gatherings amended
	15  Agenda Info Sheet Setting Date and Location for School Budget Election
	15a  Order 61-08052013 Setting the date, location, and time - School Budget Validation
	16  Agenda Info Sheet tax due date and interest rate agenda info sheet
	16a  Order 62-08052013 tax due dates and interest rate  2013-2014
	17  Agenda Info Sheet Publ Serv Dept
	17a  APW ORG Chart_CurrentPositions_July2013_withParks_latestFINAL
	APW ORG Chart_CurrentPositions_July2013_withParks_latest.vsd
	Page-1


	17b  Order 63-08052013 Public Services Department
	18  Infor Sheet CDBG Program Amendment 8-2013
	18a  Community Develoment Program Amendment  FINAL
	18b  City of Auburn - CDBG Targeted Code Enforcement Program
	18c  Code Requests In CDBG Target Areas Map
	18d  CDBG Target Areas Map
	18e  Vacant Properties In CDBG Target Areas Map
	18f  Order 64-08052013 CDBG Program Amendment
	19  Executive Session info sheet-Poverty Abatement
	19a  Memo to City Manager 
	19b  Title 36 841 2-Prop Abatement
	19c  Order 65-08052013 Poverty Abatement2

